City Council
Regular Session
Agenda Packet
March 2, 2017



CITY OF SANSOM PARK
CITY COUNCIL
Regular Session
March 2, 2017
7:00 P.M.

ATTENDANCE SHEET

Jim Barnett, Jr., Mayor

Crystal Harris, Mayor Pro Tem

Council Member Donna Bell, Place1

Council Member Jerry Sewall, Place 2

Council Member Jim Barnett, Sr., Place 3

Council Member Tanya Gregory, Place 4
Staff:

Angela Winkle, City Administrator

Lee Thomas, City Attorney

Wendy Blocker, City Secretary

Allen Richards, Fire Chief

Will Wilkerson, Police Chief

Ron Douglas, Community Development



CITY OF SANSOM PARK
City Council Meeting Agenda

Regular Session - 7:00 p.m.
March 2, 2017

The Sansom Park City Council will hold a Regular Session at 7:00 p.m. in the City Hall Council
Chambers, 5705 Azle Avenue, Sansom Park, Texas on Thursday, March 2, 2017. This meeting is open to
the public and subject to the Open Meeting Act.

Pursuant to Section 551.071 of the Texas Government Code, the Council may convene an Executive
Session at any time during the meeting as deemed necessary to obtain advice from the City Attorney
regarding any posted agenda item.

REGULAR SESSION - 7:00 P.M.

II.

II1.

Iv.

VL

VIIL.

CALL TO ORDER /ROLL CALL
Call to order and announce a quorum is present.

INVOCATION

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

PUBLIC INPUT

The City Council invites citizens to speak on any topic. However, unless the item is specifically
noted on this agenda, the City Council is required under the Texas Open Meetings Act to limit its
response to responding with a statement of specific factual information, reciting the City's
existing policy, or directing the person making the inquiry to visit with City Staff about the issue.
No Council deliberation is permitted. Each person will have 3 minutes to speak.

MAYOR AND COUNCIL REPORTS, PRESENTATIONS AND PROCLAMATIONS
City Secretary to administer Oath of Office to Sansom Park Fire Department personnel.

CONSENT AGENDA

Items on the Consent Agenda are routine and administrative in nature. As such, these items are
considered for approval by a single motion and vote without discussion. Council Members can
remove an item or items from the agenda, so it can be considered separately, and/or add any item
to be considered as part of the Consent Agenda.

1. Consider approval of the Regular meeting minutes held on February 2, 2017, as presented.
2. Consider approval of the Quarterly Investment report for period ending December 31, 2016.
3. Consider adoption of Resolution N0.997-17 16 a Resolution Re-adopting an Investment Policy

for the City of Sansom Park.

NEW BUSINESS

1. Discuss and consider adoption of Resolution N0.998-17 a Resolution of the City of
Sansom Park for the adoption of the City of Sansom Park Cafeteria Plan.

City Council Regular Session Agenda
March 2, 2017
Page 1 of 2



2. Discuss and consider a professional services Agreement between the City of Sansom Park and
Livable Plans and Codes for planning and zoning consultant Jayashree Narayana.

3. Discuss and consider approving, Coker Engineering, LLC, to complete the plans examination
for Fire Protection System for future development projects and authorize the City Administrator
to execute said Agreement.

VIII. ITEMS OF COMMUNITY INTEREST
Items of community interest include expressions of thanks, congratulations, or condolence;
information regarding holiday schedules; honorary recognitions of city officials, employees, or
citizens; reminders about upcoming events sponsored by the city or other entity that is scheduled
to be attended by a city official or employee; and announcements involving imminent threats to
the public health and safety.

ADJOURNMENT

Certification:

1 hereby certify that the above notice was posted on the bulletin board, at the Sansom Park City Hall, 5705 Azle Avenue, Sansom
Park, Texas, 76114, on , 2017 am/pm and remained so posted at least 72

hours before said meeting was convened. NOTICE: Sansom Park City Hall is wheelchair accessible and special parking is
available on the North side of the building. Persons with disabilities who plan to attend this meeting and who may need auxiliary
aids or services are requested to contact the City Secretary’s Office a minimum of 24 hours before the meeting and every effort
will be made to provide reasonable accommodations.

Wendy Blocker, City Secretary

NOTICE: A quorum of the Crime Control and Prevention District Board of Directors, the Planning and Zoning Commission, the Zoning Board
of Adjustment and the Building Board of Appeals will be present at this meeting; however, none of these Boards will take action on any items on
this posted agenda.

Certification of Notice of Meeting was removed on , 2017 at a.m. /p.m. by

City Council Regular Session Agenda
March 2, 2017
Page 2 of 2



Sansom Park City Council

AGENDA REPORT

Meeting Date:  March 2, 2017 Staff Contact: Wendy Blocker, City Secretary
Agenda Item: VI-1 E-mail: wblocker@sansompark.org
Phone: 817-626-3791 ext.118

SUBJECT: Consider approval of the Regular meeting minutes held on February 2, 2017, as presented.,

BACKGROUND:
Attached are the City Council minutes from the Regular meeting held on February 2, 2017, as presented.

FINANCIAL IMPACT:
There is none.

RECOMMENDATION:
Staff recommends Council consideration of the minutes as presented.

ATTACHMENTS:

e Minutes from February 2, 2017



MINUTES OF THE CITY COUNCIL REGULAR SESSION HELD Thursday, February 2,
2017 at 7:00 p.m. in the City Council chambers, 5705 Azle Ave., Sansom Park, Texas.

City Council Members Present: Jim Barnett, Jr., Mayor
Donna Bell, Place 1
Jerry Sewall, Place 2
Jim Barnett, Sr., Place 3
Tanya Gregory, Place 4

City Staff Present: Lee Thomas, City Attorney
Angela Winkle, City Administrator
Wendy Blocker, City Secretary
Ron Douglas, Community Development Director
Will Wilkerson, Police Chief

Absent: Crystal Harris, Mayor Pro-Tem
Allen Richards, Fire Dept.

CALL TO ORDER
Mayor Barnett called the regular meeting to order at 7:00 pm with a quorum present.

INVOCATION
Invocation was given by Jim Barnett, Sr.

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
The Pledge of Allegiance and the Texas Pledge were both recited.

PUBLIC INPUT
There was none.

MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL REPORTS AND PRESENTATIONS
Mayor Barnett advises Council of the Mayors’ Council meeting on Monday, February 6, 2017.

CONSENT AGENDA

Items on the Consent Agenda are routine and administrative in nature. As such, these items are considered for
approval by a single motion and vote without discussion. Council Members can remove an item or items from the
agenda, so it can be considered separately, and/or add any item to be considered as part of the Consent Agenda.

1. Consider approval of the Regular meeting minutes held on January 19, 2017, as presented.

Member Jim Barnett, Sr. made a motion to approve the consent agenda, second by Member Tanya
Gregory. Council voted unanimously to approve the consent agenda as presented.
Motion carried 4-0.

City Council Minutes February 2, 2017 Page 1



NEW BUSINESS

1. Discuss and consider adoption of Ordinance No. 518-17 an Ordinance of the City Council
of the City of Sansom Park, Texas, Ordering a General Election and a Special Election on a
Referendum to determine the reauthorization of the Street Maintenance Sales Tax for a
period of four (4) years to be held on May 6, 2017; and authorizing the City Secretary to
sign a joint agreement contract with Tarrant County; and establishing procedures for the
Elections; and providing an effective date.

Member Barnett, Sr. made a motion to adopt Ordinance No. 518-17, second by Member Gregory.
Council voted unanimously to adopt Ordinance No. 518-17 an Ordinance of the City Council of
the City of Sansom Park, Texas, Ordering a General Election and a Special Election on a
Referendum to determine the reauthorization of the Street Maintenance Sales Tax for a period of
four (4) years to be held on May 6, 2017; and authorizing the City Secretary to sign a joint
agreement contract with Tarrant County; and establishing procedures for the Elections; and
providing an effective date. Motion carried 5-0.

2. Discuss and consider adoption of Ordinance No. 519-17 a uniformed EMS Ordinance and
Interlocal Cooperative Agreement with Medstar Mobile Healthcare to administer and operate a
pre-hospital, emergency medical services, and medical transportation system in a service area
compromised of the member’s jurisdiction.

Member Barnett, Sr. made a motion to adopt Ordinance No. 519-17, second by Member Donna Bell.
Council voted unanimously to adopt Ordinance No. 519-17 a uniformed EMS Ordinance and Interlocal
Cooperative Agreement with Medstar Mobile Healthcare to administer and operate a pre-hospital,
emergency medical services, and medical transportation system in a service area compromised of the
member’s jurisdiction. Motion carried 4-0.

Doug Hooten, Executive Director for Medstar presents Mayor Barnett with a trophy buckle for the
appreciation and support given from the City of Sansom Park for years of continued cooperation.

ITEMS OF COMMUNITY INTEREST

Items of community interest include expressions of thanks, congratulations, or condolence, information
regarding holiday schedules; honorary recognitions of city officials, employees, or citizens, reminders
about upcoming events sponsored by the city or other entity that is scheduled to be attended by a city
official or employee; and announcements involving imminent threats to the public health and safety.

As there was no further business to discuss or consider, Mayor Barnett adjourned the meeting at
7:08 p.m.

ATTEST: Jim Barnett, Jr. Mayor

Wendy Blocker, City Secretary

City Council Minutes February 2, 2017 Page 2



Sansom Park City Council

AGENDA REPORT

Angela Winkle, TRMC, CMC
Meeting Date:  March 2, 2017 Staff Contact: City Administrator
Agenda Item: VI-2 E-mail: awinkle@sansompark.org
Phone: 817-626-3791 ext.103

SUBJECT: Review and accept the Quarterly Investment Report for the 4th Quarter ending December 31, 2016

BACKGROUND:

Pursuant to Chapter 2256 of the Government Code Public Funds Investment Act requires that not less than quarterly the
chief financial officer shall prepare and submit to the City Council of the municipality a written report of investment
transactions for all funds.

FINANCIAL IMPACT:
There is none.

RECOMMENDATION:
Staff recommends Council approval for the record of the Quarterly Financial Report as presented.

ATTACHMENTS:

e 4thQuarter Financial Report



CITY OF SANSOM PARK
QUARTERLY INVESTMENT REPORT

OCTOBER TO DECEMBER 2016
BALANCE ACTIVITY BALANCE %YIELD/APR 90 DAY T-BILL
FUND DESC 10/1/2016 DEPOSITS WITHDRAWALS INTEREST 9/30/2016 INSTITUTION 12/31/2016 12/30/2016
1. LOCAL GOVERNMENT INVESTMENT POOL - LOGIC:
PF-WS LOGIC Water & Sewer CAP PRO) 2,503,244 - - 5,318 2,508,562  LOGIC 0.88% 0.50%
PF-WS LOGIC Water & Sewer 6 - - - 6 LOGIC 0.88% 0.50%
GF LOGIC General Fund 260,332 - - 553 260,885 LOGIC 0.88% 0.50%
SR-CCPD LOGIC CCPD Fund 100,558 - - 214 100,772 LOGIC 0.88% 0.50%
SR-EDC LOGIC EDC Fund 88,489 - - 188 88,677 LOGIC 0.88% 0.50%
GF LOGIC CIP 166,076 < - 353 166,429  LOGIC 0.88% 0.50%
TOTAL LOCAL GOVERNMENT INVESTMENT POOL - LOGIC 3,118,705 - - 6,625 3,125,330
LOGIC WEIGHTED AVERAGE MATURITY (DAYS) 32
LOGIC MARKET VALUE PER SHARE  § 1.000396
2. CERTIFICATES OF DEPOSIT
GF Providence Bank (matures July 2018) 176,213 - - 611 176,825  Providence 1.40% 0.50%
TOTAL CERTIFICATES OF DEPOSIT 176,213 - - 611 176,825
3. BANKACCOUNTS:
POOLED Pooled Cash In Bank 212,753 1,275,244 {1,020,402) 35 467,631  Bank of Texas
INS TRUST insurance Trust Cash Account 27,616 26,979 (53,887) 2 709  Bank of Texas
POOLED Payroll Cash Account 2 271,984 (271,383) 0 602  Bank of Texas
PF-WS USDA Debt Service 3 92,489 (92,489) 1 S  Bank of Texas
GF BOT Police Forfeiture 5,629 - - 1 5,630  Bank of Texas
SR-EDC Bank of Texas EDC 17,283 34,572 {18,195) 3 33,663  Bank of Texas
SR-CCPD Bank of TX - CCPD 53,550 32,764 - 13 86,326  Bank of Texas
TOTAL BANK ACCOUNTS 316,835 1,734,031 (1,456,356) 55 594,566
4, COLLATERALIZATION OF BANK ACCOUNTS: BOOK VALUE MARKET VALUE
12/31/2016 12/31/2016
TOTAL FEDERAL SECURITIES  $ 646,352 $ 646,154
BANK BALANCE $ 594,566
FDIC COVERAGE $  (250,000)
DIFFERENCE $ 344,566
DIFFERENCE @ 102% 1.02
AMOUNT TO BE COVERED BY COLLATERAL $ 351,457
The undersigned serves as the Investment Officer for the City of Sansom Park. | certify that all instruments held in the City's investment portfolios for the period October 1, 2016 through
December 31,2626: (a) met the investment guidelines and complied with the investment strategies as authorized by the City's Investment Policies, and (b) did not violate any applicable
S. provision: ion 2256 of the Government Code of Fexas.

)

SIGNED:

Z:\City Secretary\COUNCIL\Council Packet Documents\2017 Council Packet\3-2-17\Quarterly Investment Report_123116



Sansom Park City Council

AGENDA REPORT

Meeting Date:  March 2, 2017 Staff Contact: Wendy Blocker, City Secretary
Agenda Item: VI-3 E-mail: wblocker@sansompark.org
Phone: 817-626-3791 ext.118

SUBJECT: Consider adoption of Resolution No. 997-17 a Resolution Re-adopting an Investment Policy for the
City of Sansom Park.

BACKGROUND:

The Investment Policy is required by the Texas Public Funds Investment Act, Section 2256.005 to be approved
annually by the governing body.

FINANCIAL IMPACT:
There is none.

RECOMMENDATION:
Staff recommends adopting the Investment Policy with no changes.

ATTACHMENTS:
Investment Policy
Resolution 997-17



CITY OF SANSOM PARK
RESOLUTION NO. 997-17

A RESOLUTION RE-ADOPTING AN INVESTMENT POLICY FOR THE
CITY OF SANSOM PARK.

WHEREAS, the Texas Public Funds Investment Act, Section 2256.005 requires
that the governing body of a local government adopt a written investment policy by rule,
order, ordinance, or resolution, and

WHEREAS, the act requires that the investment policy, including a list of
authorized investments and investment strategies, must be approved annually and

WHEREAS, the attached policy (Exhibit “A") complies with the provisions of the
act.

WHEREAS, the City of Sansom Park adopted the last Investment Policy, by
Resolution 978-16; on March 3, 2016; and.

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY OF SANSOM PARK, TEXAS,
THAT:

The City of Sansom Park Investment Policy dated March 2, 2017 is hereby adopted in
compliance with the Public Funds Investment Act.

PASSED AND APPROVED, by the Sansom Park City Council on this 2nd day of
March, 2017.

APPROVED:

Jim Barnett, Jr., Mayor

ATTEST: SEAL:

Wendy Blocker, City Secretary



City of
Sansom Park, Texas

Investment Policy

Resolution 978-16 03/03/2016/REVISED 03/02/2017 Resolution 997-1



CITY OF SANSOM PARK, TEXAS
INVESTMENT POLICY

I. POLICY

It is the policy of the City of Sansom Park, Texas (hereinafter referred to as the “City”)
that, after allowing for the anticipated cash flow requirements of the City and giving due
consideration to the safety and risk of investment, all available funds shall be invested in
conformance with these legal and administrative guidelines, seeking to optimize interest earnings to
the maximum extent possible.

Effective cash management is recognized as essential to good fiscal management.
Investment income is a source of revenue to the City’s funds. The City’s investment portfolio shall
be designed and managed in a manner designed to maximize this revenue source, to be responsive
to public trust, and to be in compliance with legal requirements and limitations.

Investments shall be made with the primary objectives of (a) safety and preservation of
principal, (b) maintenance of sufficient liquidity to meet operating needs, (c) public trust from
prudent investment activities, and (d) optimization of interest earnings on the portfolio.

II. PURPOSE

The purpose of this investment policy is to comply with Chapter 2256 of the Government
Code (hereinafter referred to as the “Public Funds Investment Act”), which requires each
municipality to adopt a written investment policy regarding the investment of its funds and funds
under its control. The investment policy addresses the methods, procedures, and practices that must
be exercised to ensure effective and judicious fiscal management of the City’s funds.

III. SCOPE

This investment policy shall govern the investment of all financial assets of the City. These
funds are accounted for in the City’s Annual Financial Report (CAFR) and include:

* General Fund

* Special Revenue Funds

» Capital Projects Funds

e Enterprise Funds

* Trustand Agency Funds, to the extent not required by law or existing contract to be kept
segregated and managed separately

¢ Debt Service Funds, including reserves and sinking funds, to the extent not required by
law or existing contract to be kept segregated and managed separately

* Anynew fund created by the City, unless specifically exempted from this policy by the
City Council or by law.

This investment policy shall apply to all transactions involving the financial assets and
related activity for all the foregoing funds.

1 Revised 03/02/2017



CITY OF SANSOM PARK, TEXAS
INVESTMENT POLICY

IV. INVESTMENT OBJECTIVES

The City shall manage and invest its cash with four primary objectives, listed in order of
priority: safety, liquidity, public trust, and yield, expressed as optimization of interest earnings.
The safety of the principal invested always remains the primary objective. All investments shall be
designed and managed in a manner responsive to the public trust and consistent with state and local
law.

The City shall maintain a comprehensive cash management program, which includes
collection of accounts receivable, vendor payments in accordance with invoice terms, and prudent
investment of available cash. Cash management is defined as the process of managing monies in
order to ensure maximum cash availability and maximum earnings on short-term investment of idle
cash.

Safety

Safety of principal is the foremost objective of the investment program. Investments shall
be undertaken in a manner that seeks to ensure the preservation of capital in the overall portfolio.
The objective will be to mitigate credit and interest rate risk.

*  Credit Risk: The City will minimize credit risk, the risk of loss due to the failure of the
issuer or backer of the investment, by:
< Limiting investments to the safest types of investments,
< Pre-qualifying the financial institutions with which the City will do business, and
< Diversifying the investment portfolio so that potential losses on individual issuers
will be minimized.

* Interest Rate Risk: The City will minimize the risk that the interest earnings and the
market value of investments in the portfolio will fall due to changes in general interest
rates by:
< Structuring the investment portfolio so that investments mature to meet cash
requirements for ongoing operations, thereby avoiding the need to liquidate
investments prior to maturity,

< Investing operating funds primarily in certificates of deposit and local government
investment pools functioning as money market mutual funds, and

< Diversifying maturities and staggering purchase dates to minimize the impact of
market movements over time.

Liquidity

The investment portfolio shall remain sufficiently liquid to meet all operating requirements
that may be reasonably anticipated. This is accomplished by structuring the portfolio so that
investments mature concurrently with cash needs to meet anticipated demands. Because all possible
cash demands cannot be anticipated, all or a portion of the portfolio will be invested in local
government investment pools that offer same-day liquidity.

2 Revised 03/02/2017



CITY OF SANSOM PARK, TEXAS
INVESTMENT POLICY

Public Trust
All participants in the City’s investment process shall seek to act responsibly as custodians
of the public trust. Investment Officer(s) shall avoid any transaction that might impair public

confidence in the City’s ability to govern effectively.

Yield (Optimization of Interest Earnings)

The investment portfolio shall be designed with the objective of attaining a market rate of
return throughout budgetary and economic cycles, taking into account the investment risk
constraints and liquidity needs. Return on investment is of secondary importance compared to the
safety and liquidity objectives described above.

V. RESPONSIBILITY AND CONTROL

Delegation of Authority

In accordance with the Public Funds Investment Act, the City Council designates the City
Administrator as the City’s Chief Investment Officer(s) and the City Secretary as Investment
Officer(s). The Chief Investment Officer(s) and Investment Officer(s) are authorized to
execute investment transactions on behalf of the City. No person may engage in an investment
transaction or the management of City funds except as provided under the terms of this investment
policy as approved by the City Council. The investment authority granted to investing Officers is
effective until rescinded by the City Council.

Quality and Capability of Investment Management

The City shall provide periodic training in investments for the designated Investment
Officer(s) and other investment personnel through courses and seminars offered by professional
organizations, associations, and other independent sources in order to ensure the quality and
capability of investment management in compliance with the Public Funds Investment Act.

Training Requirement

In accordance with the Public Funds Investment Act, the designated Investment Officer(s)
shall attend an investment training session no less often than once every two years commencing
September 1,2015, and shall receive not less than ten (10) hours of instruction relating to investment
responsibilities. A newly appointed Investment Officer(s) must attend a training session of at least
ten (10) hours of instruction within twelve (12) months of the date the Officer(s) took office or
assumed the Officer(s)’s duties. The investment training session shall be provided by an
independent source approved by the City Council. For purposes of this policy, an “independent
source” from which investment training shall be obtained shall include a professional
organization, an institution of higher education, or any other sponsor other than a business
organization with whom the City may engage in an investment transaction.

3 Revised 03/02/2017



CITY OF SANSOM PARK, TEXAS
INVESTMENT POLICY

Internal Controls

The City Administrator is responsible for establishing and maintaining an internal control
structure designed to ensure that the assets of the City are protected from loss, theft, or misuse. The
internal control structure shall be designed to provide reasonable assurance that these objectives are
met. The concept of reasonable assurance recognizes that (1) the cost of a control should not exceed
the benefits likely to be derived and (2) the valuation of costs and benefits requires estimates and
judgments by management.

Accordingly, the City Administrator shall establish a process for annual independent review
by an external auditor to assure compliance with policies and procedures. The internal controls shall
address the following points:

*  Control of collusion,

* Separation of transactions authority from accounting and record keeping,

* Custodial safekeeping,

* Avoidance of physical delivery securities,

*  Clear delegation of authority to subordinate staff members,

* Written confirmation for telephone (voice) transactions for investments and wire
transfers, and

* Development of a wire transfer agreement with the depository bank or third party
custodian.

Prudence

The standard of prudence to be applied by the Investment Officer(s) shall be the “prudent
investor” rule. This rule states, “Investments shall be made with judgment and care, under
circumstances then prevailing, which persons of prudence, discretion, and intelligence exercise in
the management of their own affairs, not for speculation, but for investment, considering the
probable safety of their capital as well as the probable income to be derived.” In determining
whether the Investment Officer(s) has exercised prudence with respect to an investment decision,
the determination shall be made taking into consideration:

* Theinvestment of all funds, or funds under the City’s control, over which the Officer(s)
had responsibility rather than a consideration as to the prudence of a single investment,
and

*  Whether the investment decision was consistent with the written approved investment
policy of the City.

Indemnification
The Investment Officer(s), acting in accordance with written procedures and exercising
due diligence, shall not be held personally responsible for a specific investment’s credit risk or

market price changes, provided that these deviations are reported immediately and the appropriate
action is taken to control adverse developments.

4 Revised 03/02/2017



CITY OF SANSOM PARK, TEXAS
INVESTMENT POLICY

Ethics and Conflicts of Interest

Officers and employees involved in the investment process shall refrain from personal
business activity that would conflict with the proper execution and management of the investment
program or that would impair their ability to make impartial decisions. Employees and Investment
Officers shall disclose any material interests in financial institutions with which they conduct
business. They shall further disclose any personal financial/investment positions that could be
related to the performance of the investment portfolio.

The Investment Officer(s) of the City who has a personal business relationship with an
organization seeking to sell an investment to the City shall file a statement disclosing that personal
business interest. An Investment Officer(s) who is related within the second degree by affinity or
consanguinity to an individual seeking to sell an investment to the City shall file a statement
disclosing that relationship. A statement required under this subsection must be filed with the Texas
Ethics Commission and the City Council.

VI. SUITABLE AND AUTHORIZED INVESTMENTS

Portfolio Management

The City currently has a “buy and hold” portfolio strategy. Maturity dates are matched with
cash flow requirements and investments are purchased with the intent to be held until maturity.
However, investments may be liquidated prior to maturity for the following reasons:

* An investment with declining credit may be liquidated early to minimize loss of
principal.
* Cash flow needs of the City require that the investment be liquidated.

Investments

City funds governed by this policy may be invested in the instruments described below, all
of which are authorized by Chapter 2256 of the Government Code (Public Funds Investment Act).
Investment of City funds in any instrument or security not authorized for investment under the Act
is prohibited. The City will not be required to liquidate an investment that becomes unauthorized
subsequent to its purchase.

A. Authorized

* Certificates of Deposit issued by a bank organized under Texas law, the laws of another
state, or federal law, that has its main office or a branch office in Texas, or by a savings
and loan association or a savings bank organized under Texas law, the laws of another
state, or federal law, that has its main office or a branch office in Texas and that is
guaranteed or insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation or its successor or
secured by obligations in a manner and amount provided by law for deposits of the City.

* Local government investment pools, which (1) meet the requirements of Chapter
2256.016 of the Public Funds Investment Act, (2) are rated no lower than AAA or an
equivalent rating by at least one nationally recognized rating service, (3) seek to maintain

5 Revised 03/02/2017



CITY OF SANSOM PARK, TEXAS
INVESTMENT POLICY

a $1.00 net asset value and (4) are authorized by resolution or ordinance of the City
Council.

All prudent measures will be taken to liquidate an investment that is downgraded to less than
the required minimum rating.

B. Not Authorized

Investments including interest-only or principal-only strips of obligations with underlying
mortgage-backed security collateral and collateralized mortgage obli gations with an inverse floating
interest rate or a maturity date of over 10 years are strictly prohibited.

VII. INVESTMENT PARAMETERS

Maximum Maturities

The longer the maturity of investments, the greater their price volatility. Therefore, it is the
City’s policy to concentrate its investment portfolio in shorter-term securities in order to limit
principal risk caused by changes in interest rates.

The City attempts to match its investments with anticipated cash flow requirements. The
City will not directly invest in securities maturing more than two (2) years from the date of purchase;
however, the above described certificates of deposit may be collateralized using longer dated
investments.

Diversification

The City recognizes that investment risks can result from issuer defaults, market price
changes, or various technical complications leading to temporary illiquidity. Risk is controlled
through portfolio diversification that shall be achieved by the following general guidelines:

* Limiting investments to avoid over-concentration in investments from a specific issuer
or business sector (excluding certificates of deposit that are fully insured and
collateralized in accordance with state and federal law), and

* Continuously investing a portion of the portfolio in readily available funds such as local
government investment pools (LGIPs) to ensure that appropriate liquidity is maintained
in order to meet ongoing obligations.

The following maximum limits, by instrument, are established for the City’s total portfolio:

* Certificates of Deposit
* AuthorizedPools ............... ... ... ... .. . . 100%

6 Revised 03/02/2017



CITY OF SANSOM PARK, TEXAS

INVESTMENT POLICY
VIII. SELECTION OF FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS

Depository

At least every five (5) years, a depository shall be selected through the City’s banking
services procurement process, which shall include a formal request for proposal (RFP). The
selection of a depository will be determined by competitive bid, and evaluation of bids will be based
on the following selection criteria:

* The ability to qualify as a depository for public funds in accordance with state law,

* The ability to provide requested information or financial statements for the periods
specified,

* The ability to meet all requirements in the banking RFP,

* Complete response to all required items on the bid form, and

* Lowest net banking service cost, consistent with the ability to provide an appropriate
level of service.

Authorized Investment Providers

The City shall, at least annually, review, revise, and adopt a list of qualified financial
institutions authorized to engage in investment transactions with the City. All investment providers,
including financial institutions, banks, and local government investment pools, must sign a
certification acknowledging that the organization has received and reviewed the City’s investment
policy and that reasonable procedures and controls have been implemented to preclude investment
transactions that are not authorized by the City’s policy.

Competitive Bids

It is the policy of the City to require competitive bidding for all individual security purchases
and sales except for transactions with local government investment pools. The City Administrator

shall develop and maintain procedures for ensuring a competition in the investment of the City’s
funds.

Delivery vs. Payment

Securities shall be purchased using the delivery vs. payment method with the exception of

investment pools. Funds will be released after notification that the purchased security has been
received.

IX. SAFEKEEPING OF SECURITIES AND COLLATERAL

Safekeeping and Custodian Agreements

The City shall contract with a bank or banks for the safekeeping of securities either owned
by the City as part of its investment portfolio or held as collateral to secure demand or time deposits.
Securities owned by the City shall be held in the City’s name as evidenced by safekeeping receipts
of the institution holding the securities.

7 Revised 03/02/2017



CITY OF SANSOM PARK, TEXAS
INVESTMENT POLICY

Collateral for deposits will be held by a third party custodian designated by the City and
pledged to the City as evidenced by safekeeping receipts of the institution with which the collateral
is deposited. Original safekeeping receipts shall be obtained. Collateral may be held by the
depository bank’s trust department, a Federal Reserve Bank or branch of a Federal Reserve Bank,
a Federal Home Loan Bank, or a third party bank approved by the City.

Collateral Policy

Consistent with the requirements of the Public Funds Collateral Act, it is the policy of the
City to require full collateralization of all City funds on deposit with a depository bank, other than
investments. In order to anticipate market changes and provide a level of security for all funds, the
collateralization level will be 102% of market value of principal and accrued interest on the deposits
or investments less an amount insured by the FDIC. At its discretion, the City may require a higher
level of collateralization for certain investment securities. Securities pledged as collateral shall be
held by an independent third party with whom the City has a current custodial agreement. The
City Administrator is responsible for entering into collateralization agreements with third party
custodians in compliance with this Policy. The agreements are to specify the acceptable investment
securities for collateral, including provisions relating to possession of the collateral, the substitution
or release of investment securities, ownership of securities, and the method of valuation of securities.
A clearly marked evidence of ownership (safekeeping receipt) must be supplied to the City and
retained. Collateral shall be reviewed at least monthly to assure that the market value of the pledged
securities is adequate.

Collateral Defined

The City shall accept only the following types of collateral:

* Obligations of the United States or its agencies and instrumentalities,

* Direct obligations of the state of Texas or its agencies and instrumentalities,

* Collateralized mortgage obligations directly issued by a federal agency or
instrumentality of the United States, the underlying security for which is guaranteed by
an agency or instrumentality of the United States,

*  Obligations of states, agencies, counties, cities, and other political subdivisions of any
state rated as to investment quality by a nationally recognized rating firm not less than
A or its equivalent with a remaining maturity of ten (10) years or less,

* A surety bond issued by an insurance company rated as to investment quality by a
nationally recognized rating firm not less than A, and

*  Aletter of credit issued to the City by the Federal Home Loan Bank.

8 Revised 03/02/2017



CITY OF SANSOM PARK, TEXAS
INVESTMENT POLICY

Subject to Audit

All collateral shall be subject to inspection and audit by the City Administrator or the City’s
independent auditors.

X. PERFORMANCE

Performance Standards

The City’s investment portfolio will be managed in accordance with the parameters specified
within this policy. The portfolio shall be designed with the objective of obtaining a rate of return
through budgetary and economic cycles, commensurate with the investment risk constraints and the
cash flow requirements of the City.

Performance Benchmark

It is the policy of the City to purchase investments with maturity dates coinciding with cash
flow needs. Through this strategy, the City shall seek to optimize interest earnings utilizing
allowable investments available on the market at that time. Market value will be calculated on a
quarterly basis on all securities owned and compared to current book value. The City’s portfolio
shall be designed with the objective of regularly meeting or exceeding the average rate of return on
U.S. Treasury Bills at a maturity level comparable to the City’s weighted average maturity in days.

XI. REPORTING
Methods

The Investment Officer(s) shall prepare an investment report on a quarterly basis that
summarizes investment strategies employed in the most recent quarter and describes the portfolio
in terms of investment securities, maturities, and shall explain the total investment return for the
quarter.

The quarterly investment report shall include a summary statement of investment activity
prepared in compliance with generally accepted accounting principles. This summary will be
prepared in a manner that will allow the City to ascertain whether investment activities during the
reporting period have conformed to the investment policy. The report will be provided to the City
Council. The report will include the following;

* A listing of individual securities held at the end of the reporting period,

* Unrealized gains or losses resulting from appreciation or depreciation by listing the
beginning and ending book and market value of securities for the period,

* Additions and changes to the market value during the period,

* Average weighted yield to maturity of portfolio as compared to applicable benchmark,

* Listing of investments by maturity date,

*  Fully accrued interest for the reporting period,

9 Revised 03/02/2017



CITY OF SANSOM PARK, TEXAS
INVESTMENT POLICY

* The percentage of the total portfolio that each type of investment represents, and
* Statement of compliance of the City’s investment portfolio with state law and the
investment strategy and policy approved by the City Council.

Monitoring Market Value

Market value of all securities in the portfolio will be determined on a quarterly basis. These
values will be obtained from a reputable and independent source and disclosed to the governing
body quarterly in a written report.

XII. INVESTMENT POLICY ADOPTION

The City’s investment policy shall be adopted by resolution of the City Council. It is the
City’s intent to comply with state laws and regulations. The City’s investment policy shall be
subject to revisions consistent with changing laws, regulations, and needs of the City. The City
Council shall adopt a resolution stating that it has reviewed the policy and investment strategies
annually, approving any changes or modifications.

XIII. INVESTMENT STRATEGY

The City shall maintain an investment portfolio that utilizes specific investment strategy
considerations designed to address the unique characteristics of its various fund groups. In order
to minimize risk of loss due to interest rate fluctuations, investment maturities will not exceed the
anticipated cash flow requirements of the funds. Authorized securities will be of the highest credit
quality, and when not matched to liabilities, they will be short-term and liquid. The portfolio will
be diversified to avoid market and credit risks. Diversification and full liquidity requirements will
be met through the use of investment pools and certificates of deposit. Investment guidelines by
fund type are as follows:

A. Investment strategies for operating funds and commingled cash pools containing
operating funds have as their primary objective to assure that anticipated cash flows are
matched with adequate investment liquidity. The secondary objective is to create a
portfolio structure which will experience minimal volatility during economic cycles.

B. Investment strategies for debt service funds shall have as their primary objective the
assurance of investment liquidity adequate to cover the debt service obligation on the
required payment date. Securities purchased shall not have a stated final maturity date
which exceeds the debt service payment date.

C. Investment strategies for debt service reserve funds shall have as their primary objective
the ability to generate a dependable revenue stream to the appropriate debt service fund
from securities with a low degree of volatility. Securities should be of high quality and,
except as may be required by the bond ordinance specific to an individual issue, of short-
to intermediate-term maturities.

10 Revised 03/02/2017



CITY OF SANSOM PARK, TEXAS
INVESTMENT POLICY

D. Investment strategies for special projects or special purpose fund portfolios will have as
their primary objective to assure that anticipated cash flows are matched with adequate
investment liquidity. The stated final maturity dates of securities held should not exceed

the estimated project completion date.

XIV. APPROVED INVESTMENT PROVIDERS

Local Government Investment Pools

TexPool

TexPool Participant Services
c/o Federated Investors Inc.
1001 Travis Street, Suite 1400
Houston, TX 77002

Phone: (866) 839-7665

Fax: (866) 839-3291

LOGIC

First Southwest

JP Morgan Asset Management, Inc.
325 North St. Paul Street, Suite 800
Dallas, TX 75201

Phone: (800) 839-7827

Fax: (214) 953-8878

Financial Institutions/Banks

TexSTAR

First Southwest

JP Morgan Asset Management, Inc.
325 North St. Paul Street, Suite 800
Dallas, TX 75201

Phone: (800) 839-7827

Fax: (214) 953-8878

LoneSTAR

First Public

12007 Research Blvd.
Austin, TX 78759
Phone: (512) 467-3655

Any bank organized under Texas law, the laws of another state, or federal law, that has its main
office or a branch office in Texas, or by a savings and loan association or a savings bank organized
under Texas law, the laws of another state, or federal law, that has its main office or a branch office
in Texas and that is guaranteed or insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance or its successor or
secured by obligations in a manner and amount provided by law for deposits of the Entity.

Revised 03/02/2017



CITY OF SANSOM PARK, TEXAS
INVESTMENT POLICY

GLOSSARY OF COMMON TREASURY TERMS

Accrued Interest: The accumulated interest due on a bond as of the last interest payment made by
the issuer.

Agency: A debt security issued by a federal or federally sponsored agency. Federal agencies are
backed by the full faith and credit of the U.S. Government. Federally sponsored agencies
(FSAs) are backed by each particular agency with a market perception that there is an
implicit government guarantee. An example of a federal agency is the Government National
Mortgage Association (GNMA). An example of a FSA is the Federal National Mortgage
Association (FNMA).

Amortization: The systematic reduction of the amount owed on a debt issued through periodic
payments of principal.

Asked: The price at which securities are offered.

Average Life: The average length of time that an issue of serial bonds and/or term bonds with a
mandatory sinking fund feature is expected to be outstanding.

Bankers’ Acceptance (BA): A draft of bill or exchange accepted by a bank or trust company. The
accepting institution guarantees payment of the bill, as well as the issuer.

Basis Point: A unit of measurement used in the valuation of fixed-income securities equal to 1/100
of a percent of yield. For example, “1/4” of 1 percent is equal to 25 basis points.

Bid: The price offered by a buyer of securities. (When you are selling securities, you ask for a bid.)
See Offer.

Book Value: The value at which a security is carried on the inventory lists or other financial
records of an investor. The book value may differ significantly from the security’s current
value in the market.

Broker: A broker brings buyers and sellers together for a commission paid by the initiator of the
transaction or by both parties; he or she does not position. In the money market, brokers are

active in markets in which banks buy and sell money and in interdealer markets.

Callable Bond: A bond issue in which all or part of its outstanding principal amount may be
redeemed before maturity by the issuer under specified conditions.

Call Price: The price at which an issuer may redeem a bond prior to maturity. The price is usually
at a slight premium to the bond’s original issue price to compensate the holder for loss of

income and ownership.

Call Risk: The risk to a bondholder that a bond may be redeemed prior to maturity.

12 Revised 03/02/2017



CITY OF SANSOM PARK, TEXAS
INVESTMENT POLICY

Cash Sale/Purchase: A transaction which calls for delivery and payment of securities on the same
day that the transaction is initiated.

Certificate of Deposit (CD): A time deposit with a specific maturity evidenced by a certificate.
Large-denomination CDs are typically negotiable.

Collateral: Securities, evidence of deposit or other property that a borrower pledges to secure
repayment of a loan. Also refers to securities pledged by a bark to secure deposits of public
monies.

Collateralization: The process by which a borrower pledges securities, property, or other deposits
for the purpose of securing the repayment of a loan and/or security.

Commercial Paper: An unsecured, short-term promissory note issued by corporations, with
maturities ranging from 2 to 270 days.

Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR): The official annual report for the City of
Sansom Park. It includes combined statements and basic financial statements for each
individual fund and account group prepared in conformity with generally accepted
accounting principles (GAAP). It also includes supporting schedules necessary to
demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal and contractual provisions, extensive
introductory material, and a detailed statistical section.

Convexity: A measure of a bond’s price sensitivity to changing interest rates. A high convexity
indicates greater sensitivity of a bond’s price to interest rate changes.

Coupon: (a) The annual rate of interest that a bond’s issuer promises to pay the bondholder on the
bond’s face value. (b) A certificate attached to a bond evidencing interest due on a payment
date.

Coupon Rate: The annual rate of interest received by an investor from the issuer of certain types
of fixed-income securities. Also known as the “interest rate.”

Credit Quality: The measurement of the financial strength of a bond issuer. This measurement
helps an investor to understand an issuer’s ability to make timely interest payments and
repay the loan principal upon maturity. Generally, the higher the credit quality of a bond
issuer, the lower the interest rate paid by the issuer because the risk of default is lower.
Credit quality ratings are provided by nationally recognized rating agencies.

Credit Risk: The risk to an investor that an issuer will default in the payment of interest and/or
principal on a security.

Current Yield (Current Return): A yield calculation determined by dividing the annual interest
received on a security by the current market price of that security.

13 Revised 03/02/2017



CITY OF SANSOM PARK, TEXAS
INVESTMENT POLICY

Dealer: A dealer, as opposed to a broker, acts as a principal in all transactions, buying and selling
for his own account.

Debenture: A bond secured only by the general credit of the issuer.

Delivery versus Payment (DVP): There are two methods of delivery of securities: delivery
versus payment and delivery versus receipt (DVR) (also called free). Delivery versus
payment is delivery of securities with an exchange of money for the securities. Delivery
versus receipt is delivery of securities with an exchange of a signed receipt for the securities.

Derivatives: (1) Financial instruments whose return profile is linked to, or derived from, the
movement of one or more underlying index or security, and may include a leveraging factor,
or (2) financial contracts based upon notional amounts whose value is derived from an
underlying index or security (interest rates, foreign exchange rates, equities, or
commodities).

Discount: The difference between the cost price of a security and its maturity when quoted at lower
than face value. A security selling below original offering price shortly after sale also is
considered to be at a discount.

Discount Securities: Non-interest bearing money market instruments that are issued at a discount
and redeemed at maturity for full face value; e.g., U.S. Treasury Bills.

Diversification: Dividing investment funds among a variety of securities offering independent
returns.

Duration: A measure of the timing of the cash flows, such as the interest payments and the
principal repayment, to be received from a given fixed-income security. This calculation is
based on three variables: term to maturity, coupon rate, and yield to maturity. The duration
of a security is a useful indicator of its price volatility for given changes in interest rates.

Fair Value: The amount at which an investment could be exchanged in a current transaction
between willing parties, other than in a forced or liquidation sale.

Federal Credit Agencies: Agencies of the Federal government set up to supply credit to various
classes of institutions and individuals; e.g., S&Ls, small business firms, students, farmers,
farm cooperatives, and exporters.

Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC): A federal agency that insures bank deposits,
currently up to $100,000 per deposit.

Federal Funds (Fed Funds): Funds placed in Federal Reserve banks by depository institutions in
excess of current reserve requirements. These depository institutions may lend fed funds to
each other overnight or on a longer basis. They may also transfer funds among each other
on a same-day basis through the Federal Reserve banking system. Fed funds are considered
to be immediately available funds.

14 Revised 03/02/2017



CITY OF SANSOM PARK, TEXAS
INVESTMENT POLICY

Federal Funds Rate (the “Fed Rate”): The rate of interest at which Federal funds are traded. This
rate is currently pegged by the Federal Reserve through open-market operations.

Federal Home Loan Banks (FHLB): Government-sponsored wholesale banks (currently 12
regional banks) which lend funds and provide correspondent banking services to member
commercial banks, thrift institutions, credit unions, and insurance companies. The mission
of the FHLBs is to liquefy the housing-related assets of its members who must purchase
stock in their district bank.

Federal National Mortgage Association (FNMA or “Fannie Mae”): FNMA, like GNMA, was
chartered under the Federal National Mortgage Association Act in 1938. FNMA is a federal
corporation working under the auspices of the Department of Housing and Urban
Development (HUD). 1t is the largest single provider of residential mortgage funds in the
United States. Fannie Mae is a private stockholder-owned corporation. The corporation’s
purchases include a variety of adjustable mortgages and secondary loans, in addition to
fixed-rate mortgages. FNMA'’s securities are also highly liquid and widely accepted.
FNMA assumes and guarantees that all security holders will receive timely payment of
principal and interest.

Federal Open Market Committee (FOMC): Consists of seven members of the Federal Reserve
Board and five of the twelve Federal Reserve Bank Presidents. The President of the New
York Federal Reserve Bank is a permanent member, while the other Presidents serve on a
rotating basis. The Committee periodically meets to set Federal Reserve guidelines
regarding purchases and sales of government securities in the open market as a means of
influencing the volume of bank credit and money.

Federal Reserve System: The central bank of the United States created by Congress and consisting
of a seven-member Board of Governors in Washington, DC, twelve regional banks, and
about 5,700 commercial banks that are members of the system.

Government National Mortgage Association (GNMA or “Ginnie Mae”): Securities influencing
the volume of bank credit guaranteed by GNMA and issued by mortgage bankers,
commercial banks, savings and loan associations, and other institutions. The security holder
is protected by the full faith and credit of the U.S. Government. Ginnie Mae securities are
backed by FHA, VA, or FmHA mortgages. The term “pass-throughs” is often used to
describe Ginnie Maes.

Government Securities: An obligation of the U.S. government, backed by the full faith and credit
of the government. These securities are regarded as the highest quality of investment
securities available in the U.S. securities market. See “Treasury Bills, Notes, and Bonds.”

Interest Rate: See “Coupon Rate.”

Interest Rate Risk: The risk associated with declines or rises in interest rates which cause an
investment in a fixed-income security to increase or decrease in value.

15 Revised 03/02/2017



CITY OF SANSOM PARK, TEXAS
INVESTMENT POLICY

Internal Controls: An internal control structure designed to ensure that the assets of the entity are
protected from loss, theft, or misuse. The internal control structure is designed to provide
reasonable assurance that these objectives are met. The concept of reasonable assurance
recognizes that (1) the cost of a control should not exceed the benefits likely to be derived
and (2) the valuation of costs and benefits requires estimates and judgments by management.

Inverted Yield Curve: A chart formation that illustrates long-term securities having lower yields
than short-term securities. This configuration usually occurs during periods of high inflation
coupled with low levels of confidence in the economy and a restrictive monetary policy.

Investment Policy: A concise and clear statement of the objectives and parameters formulated by
an investor or investment manager for a portfolio of investment securities.

Investment-grade Obligations: An investment instrument suitable for purchase by institutional
investors under the prudent person rule. Investment-grade is restricted to those obligations
rated BBB or higher by a rating agency.

Liquidity: A liquid asset is one that can be converted easily and rapidly into cash without a
substantial loss of value. In the money market, a security is said to be liquid if the spread
between bid and asked prices is narrow and reasonable quantities can be purchased at those
quotes.

Local Government Investment Pool (LGIP): The aggregate of all funds from political
subdivisions that are managed for investment and reinvestment.

Mark-to-market: The process whereby the book value or collateral value of a security is adjusted
to reflect its current market value.

Market Risk: The risk that the value of a security will rise or decline as a result of changes in
market conditions.

Market Value: The price at which a security is trading and could presumably be purchased or sold.

Master Repurchase Agreement: To protect investors, many public investors will request that
repurchase agreements be preceded by a master repurchase agreement between the investor
and the financial institution or dealer. The master agreement should define the nature of the
transaction, identify the relationship between the parties, establish normal practices
regarding ownership and custody of the collateral securities during the term of the
investment, provide remedies in the case of default by either party, and clarify issues of
ownership. The master repurchase agreement protects the investor by eliminating the
uncertainty of ownership and, hence, allows investors to liquidate collateral if a bank or
dealer defaults during the term of the agreement.

Maturity: The date on which the principal or stated value of an investment becomes due and
payable. The final stated maturity is the date on which the issuer must retire a bond and pay
the face value to the bondholder. See “Weighted Average Maturity.”

16 Revised 03/02/2017



CITY OF SANSOM PARK, TEXAS
INVESTMENT POLICY

Money Market: The market in which short-term debt instruments (bills, commercial paper,
bankers’ acceptances, etc.) are issued and traded.

Money Market Mutual Fund: Mutual funds that invest solely in money market instruments.

Mutual Fund: An investment company that pools money and can invest in a variety of securities,
including fixed-income securities and money market instruments. Mutual funds are
regulated by the Investment Company Act of 1940.

National Association of Securities Dealers (NASD): A self-regulatory organization (SRO) of
brokers and dealers in the over-the-counter securities business. Its regulatory mandate
includes authority over firms that distribute mutual fund shares as well as other securities.

Net Asset Value (NAV): The market value of one share of an investment company, such as a
mutual fund. This figure is calculated by totaling a fund’s assets which include securities,
cash, and any accrued earnings, subtracting this from the fund’s liabilities, and dividing this
total by the number of shares outstanding. This is calculated once a day based on the closing
price for each security in the fund’s portfolio.

No Load Mutual Fund: A mutual fund which does not levy a sales charge on the purchase of its
shares.

Nominal Yield: The stated rate of interest that a bond pays its current owner, based on par value
of the security. It is also known as the “coupon,” “coupon rate,” or “interest rate.”

Offer: The price asked by a seller of securities. (When you are buying securities, you ask for an
offer.) See Asked and Bid.

Open Market Operations: Purchases and sales of government and certain other securities in the
open market by the New York Federal Reserve Bank as directed by the FOMC in order to
influence the volume of money and credit in the economy. Purchases inject reserves into the
bank system and stimulate growth of money and credit; sales have the opposite effect. Open
market operations are the Federal Reserve’s most important and most flexible monetary
policy tool.

Par: Face value or principal value of a bond, typically $1,000 per bond.
Portfolio: Collection of securities held by an investor.

Positive Yield Curve: A chart formation that illustrates short-term securities having lower yields
than long-term securities.

Premium: The amount by which the price paid for a security exceeds the security’s par value.

Primary Dealer: A group of government securities dealers who submit daily reports of market
activity and positions and monthly financial statements to the Federal Reserve Bank of New

17 Revised 03/02/2017



CITY OF SANSOM PARK, TEXAS
INVESTMENT POLICY

York and are subject to its informal oversight. Primary dealers include Securities and
Exchange Commission (SEC)-registered securities broker-dealers, banks, and a few
unregulated firms.

Prime Rate: A preferred interest rate charged by commercial banks to their most creditworthy
customers. Many interest rates are keyed to this rate.

Principal: The face value or par value of a debt instrument. Also may refer to the amount of
capital invested in a given security.

Prospectus: A legal document that must be provided to any prospective purchaser of a new
securities offering registered with the SEC. This can include information on the issuer, the
issuer’s business, the proposed use of proceeds, the experience of the issuer’s management,
and certain certified financial statements.

Prudent Person Rule: An investment standard outlining the fiduciary responsibilities of public
funds investors relating to investment practices, which states: “Investments shall be made
with judgment and care, under circumstances then prevailing, which persons of prudence,
discretion, and intelligence exercise in the management of their own affairs, not for
speculation, but for investment, considering the probable safety of their capital as well as the
probable income to be derived.”

Qualified Public Depositories: A financial institution which does not claim exemption from the
payment of any sales or compensating use or ad valorem taxes under the laws of this state
and that has segregated for the benefit of the Public Deposit Protection Commission eligible
collateral having a value of not less than its maximum liability and which has been approved
by the commission to hold public deposits.

Rate of Return: The yield obtainable on a security based on its purchase price or its current market
price. This may be the amortized yield to maturity on a bond or the current income return.

Reinvestment Risk: The risk that a fixed-income investor will be unable to reinvest income

proceeds from a security holding at the same rate of return currently generated by that
holding.

Repurchase Agreement (RP or REPO): A holder of securities sells these securities to an investor
with an agreement to repurchase them at a fixed price on a fixed date. The security “buyer”
in effect lends the “seller” money for the period of the agreement, and the terms of the
agreement are structured to compensate him for this. Dealers use RP extensively to finance
their positions. Exception: When the Fed is said to be doing RP, it is lending money,
which is, increasing bank reserves.

Safekeeping: A service to customers rendered by banks for a fee whereby securities and valuables
of all types and descriptions are held in the bank’s vaults for protection.

SEC Rule 15C3-1: See Uniform Net Capital Rule.

18 Revised 03/02/2017



CITY OF SANSOM PARK, TEXAS
INVESTMENT POLICY

Secondary Market: A market made for the purchase and sale of outstanding issues following the
initial distribution.

Securities & Exchange Commission (SEC): Agency created by Congress to protect investors in
securities transactions by administering securities legislation.

Serial Bond: A bond issue, usually of a municipality, with various maturity dates scheduled at
regular intervals until the entire issue is retired.

Sinking Fund: Money accumulated on a regular basis in a separate custodial account that is used
to redeem debt securities or preferred stock issues.

Structured Notes: Notes issued by Government Sponsored Enterprises (FHLB, FNMA, SLMA,
etc.) and Corporations which have imbedded options (e.g., call features, step-up coupons,
floating rate coupons, derivative-based returns) into their debt structure. Their market
performance is impacted by the fluctuation of interest rates, the volatility of the imbedded
options, and shifts in the shape of the yield curve.

Swap: Trading one asset for another.

Term Bond: Bonds comprising a large part of all of a particular issue which come due in a single
maturity. The issuer usually agrees to make periodic payments into a sinking fund for
mandatory redemption of term bonds before maturity.

Total Return: The sum of all investment income plus changes in the capital value of the portfolio.
For mutual funds, return on an investment is composed of share price appreciation plus any
realized dividends or capital gains. This is calculated by taking the following components
during a certain time period: Price Appreciation + Dividends Paid + Capital Gains = Total
Return.

Treasury Bills (T Bills): A non-interest bearing discount security issued by the U.S. Treasury to
finance the national debt. Most bills are issued to mature in three months, six months, or one
year in minimum denominations of $10,000. The yields on bills are monitored closely in the
money markets for signs of interest rate trends.

Treasury Bonds: Long-term, coupon-bearing U.S. Treasury securities issued as direct obligations
of the U.S. Government and having initial maturities of more than ten (10) years.

Treasury Notes:  Medium-term, coupon-bearing U.S. Treasury securities issued as direct
obligations of the U.S. Government and having initial maturities from two (2) to ten (10)
years.

Uniform Net Capital Rule: Securities and Exchange Commission requirement that member firms
as well as nonmember broker-dealers in securities maintain a maximum ratio of indebtedness
to liquid capital of 15 to 1; also called net capital rule and net capital ratio. Indebtedness
covers all money owed to a firm, including margin loans and commitments to purchase

19 Revised 03/02/2017



CITY OF SANSOM PARK, TEXAS
INVESTMENT POLICY

securities, one reason new public issues are spread among members of underwriting
syndicates. Liquid capital includes cash and assets easily converted into cash.

Volatility: A degree of fluctuation in the price and valuation of securities.

Volatility Risk Rating: A rating system to clearly indicate the level of volatility and other non-
credit risks associated with securities and certain bond funds. The ratings for bond funds
range from those that have extremely low sensitivity to changing market conditions and offer
the greatest stability of the return (“aaa” by S&P, “V-1” by Fitch) to those that are highly
sensitive with currently identifiable market volatility risk (“ccc” by S&P, “V-10” by Fitch).

Weighted Average Maturity (WAM): The average maturity of all the securities that comprise a
portfolio. According to SEC Rule 2A-7, the WAM for SEC-registered money market mutual
funds may not exceed 90 days and no one security may have a maturity that exceeds 397
days.

When Issued (WI): A conditional transaction in which an authorized new security has not been
issued. All “when issued” transactions are settled when the actual security is issued.

Yield: The rate of annual income return on an investment, expressed as a percentage. (a) Income
Yield is obtained by dividing the current dollar income by the current market price for the
security. (b) Net Yield or Yield to Maturity is the current income yield minus any premium
above par or plus any discount from par in purchase price, with the adjustment spread over
the period from the date of purchase to the date of maturity of the bond.

Yield Curve: A graphic representation that depicts the relationship at a given point in time between
yields and maturity for bonds that are identical in every way except maturity. A normal
yield curve may be alternatively referred to as a positive yield curve.

Yield-to-call (YTC): The rate of return an investor earns from a bond assuming the bond is
redeemed (called) prior to its nominal maturity date.

Yield-to-maturity: The rate of return yielded by a debt security held to maturity when both interest

payments and the investor’s potential capital gain or loss are included in the calculation of
return.

Zero-coupon Securities: Security that is issued at a discount and makes no periodic interest
payments. The rate of return consists of a gradual accretion of the principal of the security
and is payable at par upon maturity.

20 Revised 03/02/2017



Sansom Park City Council

AGENDA REPORT

Meeting Date:  March 2, 2017 Staff Contact: Wendy Blocker, City Secretary
Agenda Item: VII-1 E-mail: wblocker@sansompark.org
Phone: 817-626-3791 ext.118

SUBJECT: Discuss and consider adoption of Resolution No. 998-17 a Resolution of the City of Sansom Park for
the adoption of the City of Sansom Park Cafeteria Plan.

BACKGROUND:
A Cafeteria Plan as authorized under Section 125 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, is designed to allow an eligible
Employee to pay for his or her contributions under one or more insurance plans on a pre-tax salary reduction basis.

FINANCIAL IMPACT:
There is none.

RECOMMENDATION:
Staff recommends Council consideration of Resolution No. 998-17 for the Cafeteria Plan for benefit year October 1, 2016
through September 30, 2017.

ATTACHMENTS:

e Resolution No. 998-17
e (Cafeteria Plan
e Cafeteria Plan Summary Plan Description



RESOLUTION NO. 998-17

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SANSOM
PARK, TEXAS, ADOPTING THE CITY OF SANSOM PARK
CAFETERIA PLAN; AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE.

WHEREAS, the City of Sansom Park (the “City”) is a general law city acting by the
laws of the State and the Local Government Code; and

WHEREAS, the City Council desires to adopt the Cafeteria Plan, as authorized under
Section 125 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, presented to this meeting is hereby adopted
and approved and that the proper officers of the Employer are hereby authorized and directed to
execute and deliver to the Plan Administrator one or more copies of the Plan; and

WHEREAS, that the Plan Year shall be for a period beginning on October 01, 2016 and
ending September 30, 2017; and

WHEREAS, that the Employer shall contribute to the Plan amounts sufficient to meet its
obligation under the Cafeteria Plan, in accordance with the terms of the Plan Document and shall
notify the Plan Administrator to which periods said contributions shall be applied; and

WHEREAS, the Employer shall act as soon as possible to notify employees of the

adoption of the Cafeteria Plan by delivering to each Employee a copy of the Summary Plan
Description presented to this meeting, which form is hereby approved; and

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE
CITY OF SANSOM PARK, TEXAS:

SECTION 1.

The undersigned certifies that attached hereto as Exhibits A and B respectively are true
copies of the Plan Document, and Summary Plan Description for The City of Sansom Park's
Flexible Benefits Plan approved and adopted in the foregoing resolutions.

SECTION 2.

This Resolution shall become effective immediately upon passage and it is so resolved.

PASSED AND APPROVED THIS 2ND DAY OF MARCH, 2017.

Jim Barnett, Jr., Mayor

ATTEST:

Wendy Blocker, City Secretary

Page 1



THE THE CITY OF SANSOM PARK
CAFETERIA PLAN

SUMMARY PLAN DESCRIPTION



Introduction

The City of Sansom Park sponsors the The City of Sansom Park Cafeteria Plan (the "Cafeteria Plan") that allows eligible
Employees to choose from a menu of different benefits paid for with pre-tax dollars. (Such plans are also commonly
known as "salary reduction plans" or "Section 125 plans").

This Summary Plan Description ("SPD") describes the basic features of the Cafeteria Plan, how it generally operates
and how Employees can gain the maximum advantage from it.

PLEASE NOTE: This SPD is for general informational purposes only. It does not describe every detail of the Cafeteria
Plan. If there is a conflict between the Cafeteria Plan documents and this SPD, then the Cafeteria Plan documents will
control.

Cafeteria Plan

CAF Q-1. How do | pay for The City of Sansom Park benefits on a pre-tax basis?

You may elect to pay for benefits on a pre-tax basis by entering an election with the Employer. At the Employer's option,
this may be done with a traditional "paper” salary reduction agreement or it may be done in electronic form. Whatever
medium is used, it shall be referred to as a Salary Reduction Agreement for purposes of this SPD.

If you elect to pay for benefits on a pre-tax basis, you agree to a salary reduction to pay for your share of the cost of
coverage with pretax funds instead of receiving a corresponding amount of your regular pay that would otherwise be
subject to taxes.

Example CAF Q-1(a): Sally is paid an annual salary of $30,000. Sally elects to pay for $2,000 worth of benefits for the
Plan Year on a pre-tax basis. By doing so, she is electing to reduce her salary, and therefore also her taxable income,
by $2,000 for the year to $28,000.

From then on, you must pay contributions for such coverage by having that portion deducted from each paycheck on a
pre-tax basis (generally an equal portion from each paycheck, or an amount otherwise agreed to or as deemed
appropriate by the Plan Administrator).

Example CAF Q-1(b): Using the same facts from Example Q-1(a), suppose Sally is paid 26 times a year (bi-weekly).
Because she has elected $2,000 in benefits, she will have $76.92 deducted from each paycheck for the year ($2,000
divided by 26 paychecks equals $76.92).

CAF Q-2. What benefits may be elected under the Cafeteria Plan?
The Cafeteria Plan includes the following benefit plans:

The Premium Payment Component permits an Employee to pay for his or her share of contributions for insurance plans
with pretax dollars. Under the The City of Sansom Park Cafeteria Plan, these benefits may include:

* Accident

* Bridge

* Dental

* Hospital Indemnity

Page 2



* Medical
* Vision
* Other - Flexible spending Accounts

If you select any or all of these benefits, you will likely pay all or some of the contributions; the Employer may contribute
some or no portion of them. The applicable amounts will be described in documents furnished separately to you as
necessary from time to time.

The Employer may at its own discretion offer cash in lieu of benefits for participants who do not choose benefits. If the
Employer does choose this option, participants will be informed through other communications.

CAF Q-3. Who can participate in the Cafeteria Plan?

Employees who are working 30 hours per week or more are eligible to participate in the Cafeteria Plan following 60 days
of employment with the Employer, provided that the election procedures in CAF Q-5 are followed.

An "Employee” is any individual who the Employer classifies as a common-law employee and who is on the Employer's
W-2 payroll.

Please note: "Employee" does not include the following:

(a) any leased employee (including but not limited to those individuals defined as leased employees in Code § 414(n)) or
an individual classified by the Employer as a contract worker, independent contractor, temporary employee, or casual
employee for the period during which such individual is so classified, whether or not any such individual is on the
Employer's W-2 payroll or is determined by the IRS or others to be a common-law employee of the Employer;

(b) any individual who performs services for the Employer but who is paid by a temporary or other employment or
staffing agency for the period during which such individual is paid by such agency, whether or not such individual is
determined by the IRS or others to be a common-law employee of the Employer;

(c) any employee covered under a collective bargaining agreement;

(d) any individual considered "self-employed" by the IRS because of an ownership interest in The City of Sansom Park;

or (e) a "seasonal employee."
CAF Q-4. What tax savings are possible under the Cafeteria Plan?

You may save both federal income tax and FICA (Social Security/Medicare) taxes by participating in the The City of
Sansom Park Cafeteria Plan.

Example CAF Q4(a): Suppose Sally pays 15% in federal income taxes for the year. With an annual salary of $30,000,
that could mean as much as $4,500 in federal income taxes, plus $2,295 in FICA taxes (calculated at 7.65% of income).
But by electing $2,000 of cafeteria plan benefits for the year, Sally lowers her income by $2,000, meaning she is only
taxed on $28,000. This comes out to $4,200 in income tax plus $2,142 in FICA tax. That's a $453 tax savings for the
year.

(Caution: This example is intended to illustrate the general effect of "pre-taxing” benefits through a cafeteria plan. It
does not take into account the effects of filing status, tax exemptions, tax deductions and other factors affecting tax
liability. Furthermore, the amount of the contributions used in this example is not meant to reflect your actual
contributions. It is also not intended to reflect specifically upon your particular tax situation. You are encouraged to

Page 3



consult with your accountant or other professional tax advisor with regard to your particular tax situation, especially with
regard to state and local taxes.)

CAF Q-5. When does participation begin and end in the Cafeteria Plan?

After you satisfy the eligibility requirements, you can become a Participant on the first day of the next calendar month by
electing benefits in a manner such as described in CAF Q-1. An eligible Employee who does not elect benefits will not
be able to elect any benefits under the Cafeteria Plan until the next Open Enroliment Period (unless a "Change in
Election Event" occurs, as explained in CAF Q-7).

An Employee continues to participate in the Cafeteria Plan until (a) termination of the Cafeteria Plan; or (b) the date on
which the Participant ceases to be an eligible Employee (because of retirement, termination of employment, layoff,
reduction of hours, or any other reason). However, for purposes of pre-taxing COBRA coverage for Health Insurance
Benefits, certain Employees may be able to continue eligibility in the Cafeteria Plan for certain periods. See CAF Q-8
and CAF Q-12 for more information about this as information about how termination of participation affects your
Benefits.

CAF Q-6. What is meant by "Open Enrollment Period" and "Plan Year"?
The "Open Enrollment Period" is the period during which you have an opportunity to participate under the Cafeteria Plan
by electing to do so. (See Q-5.) You will be notified of the timing and duration of the Open Enroliment Period, which for

any new Plan Year generally will occur during the quarter preceding the new Plan Year.

The Plan Year for the The City of Sansom Park Cafeteria Plan is the period beginning on October 01 2016 and ending
on September 30 2017.

CAF Q-7. Can | change my elections under the Cafeteria Plan during the Plan Year?

Except in the case of HSA elections, you generally cannot change your election to participate in the Cafeteria Plan or
vary the salary reduction amounts that you have selected during the Plan Year (this is known as the "irrevocability rule").
Of course, you can change your elections for benefits and salary reductions during the Open Enroliment Period, but

those election changes will apply only for the following Plan Year.

However, there are several important exceptions to the irrevocability rule, many of which have to do with events in your
personal or professional life that may occur during the Plan Year.

Here are the exceptions to the irrevocability rule:

1. Leaves of Absence

You may change an election under the Cafeteria Plan upon FMLA and non-FMLA leave only as described in CAF Q-14.
2. Change in Status.

If one or more of the following Changes in Status occur, you may revoke your old election and make a new election,
provided that both the revocation and new election are on account of and correspond with the Change in Status (as
described in item 3 below). Those occurrences that qualify as a Change in Status include the events described below,
as well as any other events that the Plan Administrator, in its sole discretion and on a uniform and consistent basis,
determines are permitted under IRS regulations:

* a change in your legal marital status (such as marriage, death of a Spouse, divorce, legal separation, or annulment);

* a change in the number of your Dependents (such as the birth of a child, adoption or placement for adoption of a
Dependent, or death of a Dependent);

Page 4



* any of the following events that change the employment status of you, your Spouse, or your Dependent and that affect
benefits eligibility under a cafeteria plan (including this Cafeteria Plan) or other employee benefit plan of you, your
Spouse, or your Dependents. Such events include any of the following changes in employment status: termination or
commencement of employment; a strike or lockout; a commencement of or return from an unpaid leave of absence; a
change in worksite; switching from salaried to hourly-paid, union to non-union, or full-time to part-time (or vice versa);
incurring a reduction or increase in hours of employment; or any other similar change that makes the individual become
(or cease to be) eligible for a particular employee benefit;

* an event that causes your Dependent to satisfy or cease to satisfy an eligibility requirement for a particular benefit
(such as an employee's child covered as a dependent by an accident or health plan who turns 27 during the taxable
year); or

* a change in your, your Spouse's, or your Dependent's place of residence.

3. Change in Status - Other Requirements.

If you wish to change your election based on a Change in Status, you must establish that the revocation is on account of
and corresponds with the Change in Status. The Plan Administrator, in its sole discretion and on a uniform and
consistent basis, shall determine whether a requested change is on account of and corresponds with a Change in
Status. As a general rule, a desired election change will be found to be consistent with a Change in Status event if the
event affects coverage eligibility.

In addition, you must satisfy the following specific requirements in order to alter your election based on that Change in
Status:

* Loss of Spouse or Dependent Eligibility; Special COBRA Rules. For Health Insurance Benefits, a special rule governs
which type of election changes are consistent with the Change in Status. For a Change in Status involving your divorce,
annulment, or legal separation from your Spouse, the death of your Spouse or your Dependent, or your Dependent's
ceasing to satisfy the eligibility requirements for coverage, you may elect only to cancel the accident or health benefits
for the affected Spouse or Dependent. A change in election for any individual other than your Spouse involved in the
divorce, annulment, or legal separation, your deceased Spouse or Dependent, or your Dependent that ceased to satisfy
the eligibility requirements would fail to correspond with that Change in Status.

However, if you, your Spouse, or your Dependent elects COBRA continuation coverage under the Employer's plan
because you ceased to be eligible because of a reduction of hours or because your Dependent ceases to satisfy
eligibility requirements for coverage, and if you remain a Participant under the terms of this Cafeteria Plan, then you may
in certain circumstances be able to increase your contributions to pay for such coverage. See CAF Q-12.

* Gain of Coverage Eligibility Under Another Employer’s Plan. For a Change in Status in which you, your Spouse, or
your Dependent gains eligibility for coverage under another Employer's cafeteria plan (or qualified benefit plan) as a
result of a change in your marital status or a change in your, your Spouse's, or your Dependent's employment status,
your election to cease or decrease coverage for that individual under the Cafeteria Plan would correspond with that
Change in Status only if coverage for that individual becomes effective or is increased under the other Employer's plan.

4. Special Enroliment Rights. In certain circumstances, enrollment for Health Insurance Benefits may occur outside
the Open Enroliment Period, as explained in materials provided to you separately describing the Health Insurance
Benefits. When a special enroliment right explained in those separate documents applies to your Medical Insurance
Benefits, you may change your election under the Cafeteria Plan to correspond with the special enrollment right. Special
enrollments may also be available as a result of a loss of eligibility for Medicaid or for coverage under a state children's
health insurance program (SCHIP) or as a result of eligibility for a state premium assistance subsidy under the plan from
Medicaid or SCHIP.

5. Certain Judgments, Decrees, and Orders. If a judgment, decree, or order from a divorce, separation, annulment, or
custody change requires your child (including a foster child who is your Dependent) to be covered under the Health
Insurance Benefits, you may change your election to provide coverage for the child. If the order requires that another

Page 5



individual (such as your former Spouse) cover the child, then you may change your election to revoke coverage for the
child, provided that such coverage is, in fact, provided for the child.

6. Medicare or Medicaid. If you, your Spouse, or your Dependent becomes entitled to (i.e., becomes enrolled in)
Medicare or Medicaid, then you may reduce or cancel that person's accident or health coverage under the Medical
Insurance Plan. Similarly, if you, your Spouse, or your Dependent who has been entitled to Medicare or Medicaid loses
eligibility for such coverage, then you may elect to commence or increase that person's accident or health coverage.

7. Change in Cost. If the cost charged to you for your Health Insurance Benefits significantly increases during the Plan
Year, then you may choose to do any of the following: (a) make a corresponding increase in your contributions; (b)
revoke your election and receive coverage under another benefit package option (if any) that provides similar coverage,
or elect similar coverage under the plan of your Spouse's employer; or (c) drop your coverage, but only if no other
benefit package option provides similar coverage. Coverage under another employer plan, such as the plan of a
Spouse's or Dependent's employer, may be treated as similar coverage if it otherwise meets the requirements of similar
coverage.) If the cost of Health Insurance significantly decreases during the Plan Year, then the Plan Administrator may
permit the following election changes: (a) if you are enrolled in the benefit package option that has decreased in cost,
you may make a corresponding decrease in your contributions; (b) if you are enrolled in another benefit package option
(such as the HMO option under the Medical Insurance Plan), you may change your election on a prospective basis to
elect the benefit package option that has decreased in cost (such as the PPO option under the Medical Insurance Plan);
or (c) if you are otherwise eligible, you may elect the benefit package option that has decreased in cost on a prospective
basis, subject to the terms and limitations of the benefit package option.

For insignificant increases or decreases in the cost of benefits, however, the Plan Administrator will automatically adjust
your election contributions to reflect the minor change in cost.

The Plan Administrator generally will notify you of increases or decreases in the cost of Health Insurance benefits.
8. Change in Coverage. You may also change your election if one of the following events occurs:

* Significant Curtailment of Coverage. If your Health Insurance Benefits coverage is significantly curtailed without a loss
of coverage (for example, when there is an increase in the deductible under the Medical Insurance Benefits), then you
may revoke your election for that coverage and elect coverage under another benefit package option that provides
similar coverage. (Coverage under a plan is significantly curtailed only if there is an overall reduction of coverage under
the plan generally loss of one particular physician in a network does not constitute significant curtailment.) If your Health
Insurance Benefits coverage is significantly curtailed with a loss of coverage (for example, if you lose all coverage under
the option by reason of an overall lifetime or annual limitation), then you may either revoke your election and elect
coverage under another benefit package option that provides similar coverage, elect similar coverage under the plan of
your Spouse's employer, or drop coverage, but only if there is no option available under the plan that provides similar
coverage. (The Plan Administrator generally will notify you of significant curtailments in Medical Insurance Benefits
coverage.

* Addition or Significant Improvement of Cafeteria Plan Option. If the Cafeteria Plan adds a new option or significantly
improves an existing option, then the Plan Administrator may permit Participants who are enrolled in an option other
than the new or improved option to elect the new or improved option. Also, the Plan Administrator may permit eligible
Employees to elect the new or improved option on a prospective basis, subject to limitations imposed by the applicable
option.

* Loss of Other Group Health Coverage. You may change your election to add group health coverage for you, your
Spouse, or your Dependent, if any of you loses coverage under any group health coverage sponsored by a
governmental or educational institution (for example, a state children's health insurance program or certain Indian tribal
programs).

* Change in Election Under Another Employer Plan. You may make an election change that is on account of and
corresponds with a change made under another employer plan (including a plan of the Employer or a plan of your
Spouse's or Dependent's employer), so long as (a) the other cafeteria plan or qualified benefits plan permits its
participants to make an election change permitted under the RS regulations; or (b) the Cafeteria Plan permits you to

Page 6



make an election for a period of coverage (for example, the Plan Year) that is different from the period of coverage
under the other cafeteria plan or qualified benefits plan, which it does.

For example, if an election to drop coverage is made by your Spouse during his or her Employer's open enrollment, you
may add coverage under the Cafeteria Plan to replace the dropped coverage.

9. Intention or Need to Obtain Coverage though a Marketplace Established under the Affordable Care Act.

You may revoke your Health Insurance Benefits coverage mid-Plan Year if either one of the following applies:

* You are seeking to enroll yourself and any other related individuals in coverage to be obtained through a Marketplace.

* You have experienced a reduction of hours and reasonably expect to be working less than 30 hours for the
foreseeable future and will seek coverage to be obtained through a Marketplace.

CAF Q-8. What happens if my employment ends during the Plan Year or | lose eligibility for other reasons?

If your employment with the Employer is terminated during the Plan Year, then your active participation in the Cafeteria
Plan will cease and you will not be able to make any more contributions to the Cafeteria Plan for Insurance Benefits.

See CAF Q-12 for information on your right to continued or converted group health coverage after termination of your
employment.

For purposes of pre-taxing COBRA coverage for Health Insurance Benefits, certain Employees may be able to continue
eligibility in the Cafeteria Plan for certain periods. See CAF Q-12.

If you are rehired within the same Plan Year and are eligible for the Cafeteria Plan, then you may make new elections,
provided that you are rehired more than 30 days after you terminated employment. If you are rehired within 30 days or
less during the same Plan Year, then your prior elections will be reinstated.

If you cease to be an eligible Employee for reasons other than termination of employment, such as a reduction of hours,
then you must complete the waiting period described in CAF Q-3 before again becoming eligible to participate in the
Plan.

CAF Q-9. ***RESERVED***
CAF Q-10. How long will the Cafeteria Plan remain in effect?

Although the Employer expects to maintain the Cafeteria Plan indefinitely, it has the right to amend or terminate all or
any part of the Cafeteria Plan at any time for any reason. It is also possible that future changes in state or federal tax
laws may require that the Cafeteria Plan be amended accordingly.

CAF Q-11. What happens if my claim for benefits is denied?
Insurance Benefits

The applicable insurance company will decide your claim in accordance with its claims procedures. If your claim is
denied, you may appeal to the insurance company for a review of the denied claim. If you don't appeal on time, you will
lose your right to file suit in a state or federal court, as you will not have exhausted your internal administrative appeal
rights (which generally is a prerequisite to bringing a suit in state or federal court). For more information about how to file
a claim and for details regarding the medical insurance company's claims procedures, consult the claims procedure
applicable under that plan or policy, as described in the plan document or summary plan description for the Insurance

Page 7



Plan.
Appeals.

If your claim is denied in whole or part, then you (or your authorized representative) may request review upon written
application to the "Committee” (the Benefits Committee that acts on behalf of the Plan Administrator with respect to
appeals). Your appeal must be made in writing within 180 days after your receipt of the notice that the claim was denied.
If you do not appeal on time, you will lose the right to appeal the denial and the right to file suit in court. Your written
appeal should state the reasons that you feel your claim should not have been denied. It should include any additional
facts and/or documents that you feel support your claim. You will have the opportunity to ask additional questions and
make written comments, and you may review (upon request and at no charge) documents and other information
relevant to your appeal.

Decision on Review.

Your appeal will be reviewed and decided by the Committee or other entity designated in the Plan in a reasonable time
not later than 60 days after the Committee receives your request for review. The Committee may, in its discretion, hold a
hearing on the denied claim. Any medical expert consulted in connection with your appeal will be different from and not
subordinate to any expert consulted in connection with the initial claim denial. The identity of a medical expert consulted
in connection with your appeal will be provided. If the decision on review affirms the initial denial of your claim, you will
be furnished with a notice of adverse benefit determination on review setting forth:

* the specific reason(s) for the decision on review;

* the specific Plan provision(s) on which the decision is based;

* a statement of your right to review (upon request and at no charge) relevant documents and other information;

* if an internal rule, guideline, protocol, or other similar criterion is relied on in making the decision on review, then a
description of the specific rule, guideline, protocol, or other similar criterion or a statement that such a rule, guideline,
protocol, or other similar criterion was relied on and that a copy of such rule, guideline, protocol, or other criterion will be
provided free of charge to you upon request;

CAF Q-12. What is "Continuation Coverage" and how does it work?

COBRA

If you have elect Health Insurance Benefits under this Plan, you may have certain rights to the continuation of such
benefits after a "Qualifying Event” (e.g., a termination of employment). See Appendix B of this SPD for a detailed
description of your rights to "continuation coverage" under COBRA.

USERRA

Continuation and reinstatement rights may also be available if you are absent from employment due to service in the
uniformed services pursuant to the Uniformed Services Employment and Reemployment Rights Act of 1994 (USERRA).
More information about coverage under USERRA is available from the Plan Administrator.

CAF Q-13. How will participating in the Cafeteria Plan affect my Social Security and other benefits?

Participating in the Cafeteria Plan will reduce the amount of your taxable income, which may result in a decrease in your
Social Security benefits and/or other benefits which are based on taxable income. However, the tax savings that you
realize through Cafeteria Plan participation will often more than offset any reduction in other benefits. If you are still

unsure, you are encouraged to consult with your accountant or other tax advisor.

CAF Q-14. How do leaves of absence (such as under FMLA) affect my benefits?

Page 8



FMLA Leaves of Absence.

If the Employer is subject to the federal Family and Medical Leave Act of 1993 and you go on a qualifying leave under
the FMLA, then to the extent required by the FMLA your Employer will continue to maintain your Health Insurance
Benefits on the same terms and conditions as if you were still active (that is, your Employer will continue to pay its share
of the contributions to the extent that you opt to continue coverage). Your Employer may require you to continue all
Medical Insurance Benefits coverage while you are on paid leave (so long as Participants on non-FMLA paid leave are
required to continue coverage). If so, you will pay your share of the contributions by the method normally used during
any paid leave (for example, on a pre-tax salary-reduction basis).

If you are going on unpaid FMLA leave (or paid FMLA leave where coverage is not required to be continued) and you
opt to continue your Insurance Benefits, then you may pay your share of the contributions in one of three ways: (a) with
after-tax dollars while on leave; (b) with pretax dollars to the extent that you receive compensation during the leave, or
by pre-paying all or a portion of your share of the contributions for the expected duration of the leave on a pre-tax salary
reduction basis out of your pre-leave compensation, including unused sick days and vacation days (to pre-pay in
advance, you must make a special election before such compensation normally would be available to you (but note that
prepayments with pre-tax dollars may not be used to pay for coverage during the next Plan Year); or (c) by other
arrangements agreed upon by you and the Plan Administrator (for example, the Plan Administrator may pay for
coverage during the leave and withhold amounts from your compensation upon your return from leave).

If your Employer requires all Participants to continue Insurance Benefits during the unpaid FMLA leave, then you may
discontinue paying your share of the required contributions until you return from leave. Upon returning from leave, you
must pay your share of any required contributions that you did not pay during the leave. Payment for your share will be
withheld from your compensation either on a pre-tax or after-tax basis, depending on what you and the Plan
Administrator agree to.

If your Health Insurance coverage ceases while you are on FMLA leave (e.g., for non-payment of required
contributions), you will be permitted to re-enter such Benefits, as applicable, upon return from such leave on the same
basis as when you were participating in the Plan before the leave or as otherwise required by the FMLA. You may be
required to have coverage for such Benefits reinstated so long as coverage for Employees on non-FMLA leave is
required to be reinstated upon return from leave.

If you are commencing or returning from FMLA leave, then your election for non-health benefits provided under this
Plan, if any, will be treated in the same way as under your Employer's policy for providing such Benefits for Participants
on a non-FMLA leave (see below). If that policy permits you to discontinue contributions while on leave, then upon
returning from leave you will be required to repay the contributions not paid by you during leave. Payment will be
withheld from your compensation either on a pre-tax or after-tax basis, as agreed to by the Plan Administrator and you
or as the Plan Administrator otherwise deems appropriate.

Non-FMLA Leaves of Absence.

If you go on an unpaid leave of absence that does not affect eligibility, then you will continue to participate and the
contribution due from you (if not otherwise paid by your regular salary reductions) will be paid by pre-payment before
going on leave, with after-tax contributions while on leave, or with catch-up contributions after the leave ends, as
determined by the Plan Administrator. If you go on an unpaid leave that does affect eligibility, then the Change in Status
rules will apply.

Premium Payment Benefits

PREM Q-1. What are "Premium Payment Benefits"?

Page 9



As described in CAF Q-1, if you elect Premium Payment Benefits you will be able to pay for your share of contributions
for Insurance Benefits with pre-tax dollars by electing to do so. Because the share of the contributions that you pay will
be with pre-tax funds, you may save both federal income taxes and FICA (Social Security) taxes. See Q-4.

PREM Q-2. How are my Premium Payment Benefits paid?

As described in CAF Q-1 and in PREM Q-1, if you select an Insurance Plan described in CAF Q-2, then you may be
required to pay a portion of the contributions. When you complete the Election Form/Salary Reduction Agreement, if you
elect to pay for benefits on a pre-tax basis you agree to a salary reduction to pay for your share of the cost of coverage
(also known as contributions) with pre-tax funds instead of receiving a corresponding amount of your regular pay that
would otherwise be subject to taxes. From then on, you must pay a contribution for such coverage by having that portion
deducted from each paycheck on a pre-tax basis (generally an equal portion from each paycheck, or an amount
otherwise agreed to or as deemed appropriate by the Plan Administrator).

The Employer may contribute all, some, or no portion of the Premium Payment Benefits that you have selected, as
described in documents furnished separately to you from time to time.

Miscellaneous

MISC Q-1

COBRA and HIPAA Rights. You have a right to continue your Health Insurance Plan coverage for yourself if there is a
loss of coverage under the plan as a result of a qualifying event. You or your dependents may have to pay for such
coverage. Review this SPD and the documents governing the plan on the rules governing your COBRA continuation
coverage rights.

HIPAA Privacy Rights. Under another provision of HIPAA, group health plans are required to take steps to ensure that
certain "protected health information" (PHI) is kept confidential. You may receive a separate notice from the Employer
(or medical insurers) that outlines its health privacy policies.

Right to Review. If your claim for a benefit is denied or ignored in whole or in part, you have a right to know why this
was done, to obtain copies of documents relating to the decision without charge, and to appeal any denial, all within
certain time schedules.

MISC Q-2. What other general information should | know?

This MISC Q-2 contains certain general information that you may need to know about the Plan.

Plan Information

Official Name of the Plan: The City of Sansom Park Cafeteria Plan

Plan Number: 501

Effective Date: October 01 2016.

Plan Year: October 01 2016 to September 30 2017. Your Plan's records are maintained on this period of time

Type of Plan: Welfare plan providing various insurance benefits

Page 10



Employer/Plan Sponsor Information
Name and Address:
The City of Sansom Park

5705 Azle Ave.
Ft. Worth, TX 76114

Federal employee tax identification number (EIN): 756004200
Plan Administrator Information

Name, Address, and business telephone number:

The City of Sansom Park

5705 Azle Ave.

Ft. Worth, TX 76114

Attention: Human Resources Manager

Telephone: 817 626 3791

Agent for Service of Legal Process

The name and address of the Plan's agent for service of legal process is:
The City of Sansom Park

5705 Azle Ave.

Ft. Worth, TX 76114
Attention: Benefits Committee

Qualified Medical Child Support Order

The Health Insurance Plans will provide benefits as required by any qualified medical child support order (QMCSOQ), as
defined in ERISA § 609(a). The Plan has detailed procedures for determining whether an order qualifies as a QMCSO.
Participants and beneficiaries can obtain, without charge, a copy of such procedures from the Plan Administrator.

Newborns' and Mothers' Health Protection Act of 1996

Group health plans and health insurance issuers generally may not, under federal law, restrict benefits for any hospital
length of stay in connection with childbirth for the mother or newborn child to less than 48 hours following a vaginal
delivery or to less than 96 hours following a cesarean section. However, federal law generally does not prohibit the
mother's or newborn's attending provider, after consulting with the mother, from discharging the mother or her newbarn
earlier than 48 hours (or 96 hours, as applicable). In any case, plans and issuers may not, under federal law, require that
a provider obtain authorization from the plan or the issuer for prescribing a length of stay not in excess of 48 hours (or

96 hours).

Page 11



Appendix A

***Affiliated Employers***

Page 12



Appendix B

COBRA CONTINUATION COVERAGE RIGHTS under the The City of Sansom Park Cafeteria
Plan (the "Plan")

The following paragraphs generally explain COBRA coverage, when it may become available to you and your family,
and what you need to do to protect the right to receive it. PLEASE READ THE FOLLOWING CAREFULLY.

The The City of Sansom Park Cafeteria Plan has group health insurance components and you may be enrolled in one or
more of these components. COBRA (and the description of COBRA coverage contained in this SPD) applies only to the
group health plan benefits offered under the Plan and not to any other benefits offered under the Plan or by The City of
Sansom Park. The Plan provides no greater COBRA rights than what COBRA requires - nothing in this SPD is intended
to expand your rights beyond COBRA's requirements.

What Is COBRA Coverage?

COBRA coverage is a continuation of Plan coverage when coverage would otherwise end because of a life event known

as a "qualifying event." Specific qualifying events are listed below in the section entitled "Who |s Entitled to Elect
COBRA?"

COBRA coverage may become available to “qualified beneficiaries"

After a qualifying event occurs and any required notice of that event is properly provided to The City of Sansom Park,
COBRA coverage must be offered to each person losing Plan coverage who is a "qualified beneficiary.” You, your
spouse, and your dependent children could become qualified beneficiaries and would be entitled to elect COBRA if
coverage under the Plan is lost because of the qualifying event. (Certain newborns, newly adopted children, and
alternate recipients under QMCSOs may also be qualified beneficiaries. This is discussed in more detail in separate
paragraphs below.)

Who Is Entitled to Elect COBRA?

We use the pronoun "you" in the following paragraphs regarding COBRA to refer to each person covered under the Plan
who is or may become a qualified beneficiary.

Qualifying events for the covered employee

If you are an employee, you will be entitled to elect COBRA if you lose your group health coverage under the Plan
because either one of the following qualifying events happens:

* your hours of employment are reduced; or
* your employment ends for any reason other than your gross misconduct.

Qualifying events for the covered spouse

If you are the spouse of an employee, you will be entitled to elect COBRA if you lose your group health coverage under
the Plan because any of the following qualifying events happens:

* your spouse dies;

* your spouse's hours of employment are reduced,

* your spouse's employment ends for any reason other than his or her gross misconduct;

* you become divorced or legally separated from your spouse. Also, if your spouse (the employee) reduces or
eliminates your group health coverage in anticipation of a divorce or legal separation, and a divorce or legal separation
later accurs, then the divorce or legal separation may be considered a qualifying event for you even though your

Page 13



coverage was reduced or eliminated before the divorce or separation.
Qualifying events for dependent children

If you are the dependent child of an employee, you will be entitled to elect COBRA if you lose your group health
coverage under the Plan because any of the following qualifying events happens:

* your parent-employee dies;

* your parent-employee's hours of employment are reduced;

* your parent-employee's employment ends for any reason other than his or her gross misconduct;
* you stop being eligible for coverage under the Plan as a "dependent child."

Electing COBRA after leave under the Family and Medical Leave Act (FMLA)

Under special rules that apply if an employee does not return to work at the end of an FMLA leave, some individuals
may be entitled to elect COBRA even if they were not covered under the Plan during the leave. Contact The City of
Sansom Park for more information about these special rules.

Special second election period for certain eligible employees who did not elect COBRA

Certain employees and former employees who are eligible for federal trade adjustment assistance (TAA) or alternative
trade adjustment assistance (ATAA) are entitled to a second opportunity to elect COBRA for themselves and certain
family members (if they did not already elect COBRA) during a special second election period of 60 days or less (but
only if the election is made within six months after Plan coverage is lost).

When Is COBRA Coverage Available?

When the qualifying event is the end of employment, reduction of hours of employment, or death of the employee, the
Plan will offer COBRA coverage to qualified beneficiaries. You need not notify The City of Sansom Park of any of these
qualifying events.

Caution:

You stop being eligible for coverage as dependent child whenever you fail to satisfy any part of the plan's definition of
dependent child.

You must notify the plan administrator of certain qualifying events by this deadline

For the other qualifying events (divorce or legal separation of the employee and spouse or a dependent child's losing
eligibility for coverage as a dependent child), a COBRA election will be available to you only if you notify The City of
Sansom Park in writing within 60 days after the later of (1) the date of the qualifying event; or (2) the date on which the
qualified beneficiary loses (or would lose) coverage under the terms of the Plan as a result of the qualifying event.

No COBRA election will be available unless you follow the Plan's notice procedures and meet the notice deadline

In providing this notice, you must use the Plan's form entitled "Notice of Qualifying Event Form" and you must follow the
notice procedures specified in the section below entitled "Notice Procedures." If these procedures are not followed or if
the notice is not provided to The City of Sansom Park during the 60-day notice period, YOU WILL LOSE YOUR RIGHT
TO ELECT COBRA.

How to elect COBRA

To elect COBRA, you must complete the Election Form that is part of the Plan's COBRA election notice and mail or

Page 14



hand-deliver it to The City of Sansom Park. An election notice will be provided to qualified beneficiaries at the time of a
qualifying event. You may also obtain a copy of the Election Form from The City of Sansom Park.

Deadline for COBRA election

If mailed, your election must be postmarked (or if hand-delivered, your election must be received by the individual at the
address specified on the Election Form) no later than 60 days after the date of the COBRA election notice provided to
you at the time of your qualifying event (or, if later, 60 days after the date that Plan coverage is lost). IF YOU DO NOT
SUBMIT A COMPLETED ELECTION FORM BY THIS DUE DATE, YOU WILL LOSE YOUR RIGHT TO ELECT
COBRA.

Independent election rights
Each qualified beneficiary will have an independent right to elect COBRA.

Any qualified beneficiary for whom COBRA is not elected within the 60-day election period specified in the Plan's
COBRA election notice WILL LOSE HIS OR HER RIGHT TO ELECT COBRA COVERAGE.

Special Considerations in Deciding Whether to Elect COBRA

In considering whether to elect COBRA, you should take into account that a failure to elect COBRA will affect your future
rights under federal law. You have the right to request special enroliment in another group health plan for which you are
otherwise eligible (such as a plan sponsored by your spouse's employer) within 30 days after your group health
coverage under the Plan ends because of one of the qualifying events listed above. You will also have the same special
enrollment right at the end of COBRA coverage if you get COBRA coverage for the maximum time available to you.

Length of COBRA Coverage

COBRA coverage is a temporary continuation of coverage. The COBRA coverage periods described below are
maximum coverage periods.

COBRA coverage can end before the end of the maximum coverage period for several reasons, which are described in
the section below entitled "Termination of COBRA Coverage Before the End of the Maximum Coverage Period."

Death, divorce, legal separation, or child's loss of dependent status

When Plan coverage is lost due to the death of the employee, the covered employee's divorce or legal separation, or a
dependent child's losing eligibility as a dependent child, COBRA coverage under the Plan's Medical and Dental
components can last for up to a total of 36 months.

If the covered employee becomes entitled to Medicare within 18 months before his or her termination of employment or
reduction of hours.

When Plan coverage is lost due to the end of employment or reduction of the employee's hours of employment, and the
employee became entitled to Medicare benefits less than 18 months before the qualifying event, COBRA coverage
under the Plan's Medical and Dental components for qualified beneficiaries (other than the employee) who lose
coverage as a result of the qualifying event can last until up to 36 months after the date of Medicare entitlement. For
example, if a covered employee becomes entitled to Medicare eight months before the date on which his employment
terminates, COBRA coverage for his spouse and children who lost coverage as a result of his termination can last up to
36 months after the date of Medicare entitlement, which is equal to 28 months after the date of the qualifying event (36
months minus eight months). This COBRA coverage period is available only if the covered employee becomes entitled
to Medicare within 18 months BEFORE the termination or reduction of hours.

Page 15



Termination of employment or reduction of hours

Otherwise, when Plan coverage is lost due to the end of employment or reduction of the employee's hours of
employment, COBRA coverage under the Plan's Medical and Dental components generally can last for only up to a total
of 18 months.

Extension of Maximum Coverage Period

If the qualifying event that resulted in your COBRA election was the covered employee's termination of employment or
reduction of hours, an extension of the maximum period of coverage may be available if a qualified beneficiary is
disabled or a second qualifying event occurs. You must notify The City of Sansom Park of a disability or a second
qualifying event in order to extend the period of COBRA coverage. Failure to provide notice of a disability or second
qualifying event will eliminate the right to extend the period of COBRA coverage.

Disability extension of COBRA coverage

If a qualified beneficiary is determined by the Social Security Administration to be disabled and you notify The City of
Sansom Park in a timely fashion, all of the qualified beneficiaries in your family may be entitled to receive up to an
additional 11 months of COBRA coverage, for a total maximum of 29 months. This extension is available only for
qualified beneficiaries who are receiving COBRA coverage because of a qualifying event that was the covered
employee's termination of employment or reduction of hours. The disability must have started at some time before the
61st day after the covered employee's termination of employment or reduction of hours and must last at least until the
end of the period of COBRA coverage that would be available without the disability extension (generally 18 months, as
described above). Each qualified beneficiary will be entitled to the disability extension if one of them qualifies.

You must notify The City of Sansom Park of a qualified beneficiary's disability by this deadline

The disability extension is available only if you notify The City of Sansom Park in writing of the Social Security
Administration's determination of disability within 60 days after the latest of:

* the date of the Social Security Administration's disability determination;
* the date of the covered employee's termination of employment or reduction of hours; and
* the date on which the qualified beneficiary loses (or would lose) coverage under the terms of the Plan as a result of the

covered employee's termination of employment or reduction of hours.

You must also provide this notice within 18 months after the covered employee's termination of employment or reduction
of hours in order to be entitled to a disability extension.

No disability extension will be available unless you follow the Plan's notice procedures and meet the notice deadline

In providing this notice, you must use the Plan's form entitled "Notice of Disability Form" and you must follow the notice
procedures specified in the section below entitled "Notice Procedures."

If these procedures are not followed or if the notice is not provided to The City of Sansom Park during the 60-day notice
period and within 18 months after the covered employee's termination of employment or reduction of hours, then there
will be no disability extension of COBRA coverage.

Second qualifying event extension of COBRA coverage

An extension of coverage will be available to spouses and dependent children who are receiving COBRA coverage if a
second qualifying event occurs during the 18 months (or, in the case of a disability extension, the 29 months) following

Page 16



the covered employee's termination of employment or reduction of hours. The maximum amount of COBRA coverage
available when a second qualifying event occurs is 36 months. Such second qualifying events may include the death of
a covered employee, divorce or legal separation from the covered employee, or a dependent child's ceasing to be
eligible for coverage as a dependent under the Plan. These events can be a second qualifying event only if they would
have caused the qualified beneficiary to lose coverage under the Plan if the first qualifying event had not occurred. (This
extension is not available under the Plan when a covered employee becomes entitled to Medicare after his or her
termination of employment or reduction of hours.)

You must notify The City of Sansom Park of a second qualifying event by this deadline

This extension due to a second qualifying event is available only if you notify The City of Sansom Park in writing of the
second qualifying event within 60 days after the date of the second qualifying event.

No extension will be available unless you follow the Plan's notice procedures and meet the notice deadline

In providing this notice, you must use the Plan's form entitled "Notice of Second Qualifying Event Form" (you may obtain
a copy of this form from The City of Sansom Park at no charge), and you must follow the notice procedures specified in
the section below entitled "Notice Procedures.” If these procedures are not followed or if the notice is not provided to
The City of Sansom Park during the 80-day notice period, then there will be no extension of COBRA coverage due to a
second qualifying event.

Termination of COBRA Coverage Before the End of the Maximum Coverage Period
COBRA coverage will automatically terminate before the end of the maximum period if:

* any required premium is not paid in full on time;

* a qualified beneficiary becomes entitled to Medicare benefits (under Part A, Part B, or both) after electing COBRA;

* the employer ceases to provide any group health plan for its employees; or

* during a disability extension period, the disabled qualified beneficiary is determined by the Social Security
Administration to be no longer disabled (COBRA coverage for all qualified beneficiaries, not just the disabled qualified
beneficiary, will terminate).

COBRA coverage may also be terminated for any reason the Plan would terminate coverage of a participant or
beneficiary not receiving COBRA coverage (such as fraud).

You must notify The City of Sansom Park if a qualified beneficiary becomes entitled to Medicare or obtains other group
health plan coverage

You must notify The City of Sansom Park in writing within 30 days if, after electing COBRA, a qualified beneficiary
becomes entitled to Medicare (Part A, Part B, or both) or becomes covered under other group health plan coverage. In
addition, if you were already entitled to Medicare before electing COBRA, notify Employer of the date of your Medicare
entitlement at the address shown in the section below entitled "Notice Procedures.”

You must notify The City of Sansom Park if a qualified beneficiary ceases to be disabled

If a disabled qualified beneficiary is determined by the Social Security Administration to no longer be disabled, you must
notify The City of Sansom Park of that fact within 30 days after the Social Security Administration's determination.

Cost of COBRA Coverage

Each qualified beneficiary is required to pay the entire cost of COBRA coverage. The amount a qualified beneficiary may
be required to pay may not exceed 102% (or, in the case of an extension of COBRA coverage due to a disability, 150%)
of the cost to the group health plan (including both employer and employee contributions) for coverage of a similarly

Page 17



situated plan participant or beneficiary who is not receiving COBRA coverage. The amount of your COBRA premiums
may change from time to time during your period of COBRA coverage and will most likely increase over time. You will be
notified of COBRA premium changes.

Payment for COBRA Coverage
How premium payments must be made

All COBRA premiums must be paid by check. Your first payment and all monthly payments for COBRA coverage must
be mailed or hand-delivered to the individual at the payment address specified in the election notice provided to you at
the time of your qualifying event. However, if the Plan notifies you of a new address for payment, you must mail or
hand-deliver all payments for COBRA coverage to the individual at the address specified in that notice of a new address.

When premium payments are considered to be made

If mailed, your payment is considered to have been made on the date that it is postmarked. If hand-delivered, your
payment is considered to have been made when it is received by the individual at the address specified above. You will
not be considered to have made any payment by mailing or hand-delivering a check if your check is returned due to
insufficient funds or otherwise.

First payment for COBRA coverage

If you elect COBRA, you do not have to send any payment with the Election Form. However, you must make your first
payment for COBRA coverage not later than 45 days after the date of your election. (This is the date your Election Form
is postmarked, if mailed, or the date your Election Form is received by the individual at the address specified for delivery
of the Election Form, if hand-delivered.) See the section above entitled "Electing COBRA Coverage."

Your first payment must cover the cost of COBRA coverage from the time your coverage under the Plan would have
otherwise terminated up through the end of the month before the month in which you make your first payment. (For
example, Sue's employment terminates on September 30, and she loses coverage on September 30. Sue elects
COBRA on November 15. Her initial premium payment equals the premiums for October and November and is due on
or before December 30, the 45th day after the date of her COBRA election.)

You are responsible for making sure that the amount of your first payment is correct. You may contact The City of
Sansom Park using the contact information provided below to confirm the correct amount of your first payment. Claims
for reimbursement will not be processed and paid until you have elected COBRA and made the first payment for it.

If you do not make your first payment for COBRA coverage in full within 45 days after the date of your election. you will
lose all COBRA rights under the Plan.

Monthly payments for COBRA coverage

After you make your first payment for COBRA coverage, you will be required to make monthly payments for each
subsequent month of COBRA coverage. The amount due for each month for each qualified beneficiary will be disclosed
in the election notice provided to you at the time of your qualifying event. Under the Plan, each of these monthly
payments for COBRA coverage is due on the first day of the month for that month's COBRA coverage. If you make a
monthly payment on or before the first day of the month to which it applies, your COBRA coverage under the Plan will
continue for that month without any break. The City of Sansom Park will not send periodic notices of payments due for
these coverage periods (that is, we will not send a bill to you for your COBRA coverage - it is your responsibility to pay
your COBRA premiums on time).

Grace periods for monthly COBRA premium payments

Page 18



Although monthly payments are due on the first day of each month of COBRA coverage, you will be given a grace
period of 30 days after the first day of the month to make each monthly payment. Your COBRA coverage will be
provided for each month as long as payment for that month is made before the end of the grace period for that payment.
However, if you pay a monthly payment later than the first day of the month to which it applies, but before the end of the
grace period for the month, your coverage under the Plan will be suspended as of the first day of the month and then
retroactively reinstated (going back to the first day of the month) when the monthly payment is received. This means that
any claim you submit for benefits while your coverage is suspended may be denied and may have to be resubmitted
once your coverage is reinstated.

If you fail to make a monthly payment before the end of the grace period for that month, you will lose all rights to COBRA
coverage under the Plan.

More Information About Individuals Who May Be Qualified Beneficiaries
Children born to or placed for adoption with the covered employee during a period of COBRA coverage

A child born to, adopted by, or placed for adoption with a covered employee during a period of COBRA coverage is
considered to be a qualified beneficiary provided that, if the covered employee is a qualified beneficiary, the covered
employee has elected COBRA coverage for himself or herself. The child's COBRA coverage begins when the child is
enrolled in the Plan, whether through special enrollment or open enrollment, and it lasts for as long as COBRA coverage
lasts for other family members of the employee. To be enrolled in the Plan, the child must satisfy the otherwise
applicable Plan eligibility requirements (for example, regarding age).

Alternate recipients under QUCSOs

A child of the covered employee who is receiving benefits under the Plan pursuant to a qualified medical child support
order (QMCSO) received by The City of Sansom Park during the covered employee's period of employment with The
City of Sansom Park is entitled to the same rights to elect COBRA as an eligible dependent child of the covered
employee.

NOTICE PROCEDURES The City of Sansom Park Welfare Benefits Plan (the Plan)

WARNING: If your notice is late or if you do not follow these notice procedures, you and all related gualified
beneficiaries will lose the right to elect COBRA (or will lose the right to an extension of COBRA coverage. as applicable).

Notices Must Be Written and Submitted on Plan Forms

Any notice that you provide must be in writing and must be submitted on the Plan's required form (the Plan's required
forms are described above in this SPD, and you may obtain copies from The City of Sansom Park without charge). Oral
notice, including notice by telephone, is not acceptable. Electronic (including e-mailed or faxed) notices are not
acceptable.

How, When, and Where to Send Notices
You must mail or hand-deliver your notice to:
Human Resources Manager

The City of Sansom Park

5705 Azle Ave.
Ft. Worth, TX 76114

Page 19



However, if a different address for notices to the Plan appears in the Plan's most recent summary plan description, you
must mail or hand-deliver your notice to that address (if you do not have a copy of the Plan's most recent summary plan
description, you may request one from The City of Sansom Park).

If mailed, your notice must be postmarked no later than the last day of the applicable notice period. If hand-delivered,
your notice must be received by the individual at the address specified above no later than the last day of the applicable
notice period. (The applicable notice periods are described in the paragraphs above entitled "You must notify the plan
administrator of certain qualifying events by this deadline," "You must notify The City of Sansom Park of a qualified
beneficiary's disability by this deadline", and "You must notify The City of Sansom Park of a second qualifying event by
this deadline.")

Information Required for All Notices

Any notice you provide must include (1) the name of the Plan (The City of Sansom Park Welfare Benefits Plan); (2) the
name and address of the employee who is (or was) covered under the Plan; (3) the name(s) and address(es) of all
qualified beneficiary(ies) who lost coverage as a result of the qualifying event; (4) the qualifying event and the date it
happened; and (5) the certification, signature, name, address, and telephone number of the person providing the notice.

Additional Information Required for Notice of Qualifying Event

If the qualifying event is a divorce or legal separation, your notice must include a copy of the decree of divorce or legal
separation. If your coverage is reduced or eliminated and later a divorce or legal separation occurs, and if you are
notifying The City of Sansom Park that your Plan coverage was reduced or eliminated in anticipation of the divorce or
legal separation, your notice must include evidence satisfactory to The City of Sansom Park that your coverage was
reduced or eliminated in anticipation of the divorce or legal separation.

Additional Information Required for Notice of Disability

Any notice of disability that you provide must include (1) the name and address of the disabled qualified beneficiary; (2)
the date that the qualified beneficiary became disabled; (3) the names and addresses of all qualified beneficiaries who
are still receiving COBRA coverage; (4) the date that the Social Security Administration made its determination; (5) a
copy of the Social Security Administration's determination; and (6) a statement whether the Social Security
Administration has subsequently determined that the disabled qualified beneficiary is no longer disabled.

Additional Information Required for Notice of Second Qualifying Event

Any notice of a second qualifying event that you provide must include (1) the names and addresses of all qualified
beneficiaries who are still receiving COBRA coverage; (2) the second qualifying event and the date that it happened;
and (3) if the second qualifying event is a divorce or legal separation, a copy of the decree of divorce or legal separation.

Who May Provide Notices

The covered employee, a qualified beneficiary who lost coverage due to the qualifying event described in the notice, or a
representative acting on behalf of either may provide notices. A notice provided by any of these individuals will satisfy
any responsibility to provide notice on behalf of all qualified beneficiaries who lost coverage due to the qualifying event
described in the notice.

THIS CONCLUDES THE SUMMARY OF YOUR CONTINUATION COVERAGE RIGHTS UNDER COBRA. PLEASE

CONTACT THE HUMAN RESOURCES OFFICE (OR THE EQUIVALENT THEREOF) OF THE CITY OF SANSOM
PARK IF YOU HAVE ANY QUESTIONS OR NEED MORE INFORMATION.

Page 20



The City of Sansom Park Cafeteria Plan Summary Plan Description
Addendum with Regard to Health Savings Accounts

HSA Q-1. What are "HSA Benefits"?

As described in HSA Q-2, an HSA permits Employees to make pre-tax contributions to an HSA
established and maintained outside the Plan with the Employee's HSA trustee/custodian. For
purposes of this Cafeteria Plan, HSA Benefits consist solely of the ability to make such pre-tax
contributions under this Cafeteria Plan.

If you elect HSA Benefits, then you will be able to provide a source of pre-tax contributions by
entering into a Salary Reduction Agreement with your Employer. Because the share of the
contributions that you pay will be with pre-tax funds, you may save both federal income taxes and
FICA taxes.

To participate in the HSA Benefits, you must be an "HSA-Eligible Individual." This means that you
are eligible to contribute to an HSA under the requirements of Code § 223 and that you have elected
qualifying High Deductible Health Plan coverage offered by the Employer and have not elected any
disqualifying non- High Deductible Health Plan coverage offered by the Employer. ("High Deductible
Health Plan" means the high deductible health plan offered by your Employer that is intended to
qualify as a high deductible health plan under Code § 223(c)(2), as described in materials that will
be provided separately to you by the Employer.) If you elect HSA Benefits, you will be required to
certify that you meet all of the requirements under Code § 223 to be eligible to contribute to an HSA.
These requirements include such things as not having any disqualifying coverage and you should
be aware that coverage under a Spouse's plan could make you ineligible to contribute to an HSA.

In order to elect HSA Benefits under the Plan, you must establish and maintain an HSA outside of
the Plan with an HSA trustee/custodian and you must provide sufficient identifying information about
your HSA to facilitate the forwarding of your pre-tax Salary Reductions through the Employer's
payroll system to your designated HSA trustee/custodian.

HSA Q-2. What is my "HSA"?

The HSA is not an employer-sponsored employee benefit plan it is an individual trust or custodial
account that you open with an HSA trustee/custodian to be used primarily for reimbursement of
"eligible medical expenses" as set forth in Code § 223. Your HSA is administered by your HSA
trustee/custodian. Consequently, an HSA trustee/custodian, not the Employer, wil! establish and
maintain your HSA. Your Employer's role is limited to allowing you to contribute to your HSA on a
pre-tax Salary-Reduction basis. The HSA trustee/custodian will be chosen by you, as the
Participant, and not by the Employer. Your Employer may, however, limit the number of HSA
providers to whom it will forward pretax Salary Reductions, a list of whom will be provided upon
request. Any such list of HSA trustees/custodians, however, shall be maintained for administrative
simplification and shall not be an endorsement of any particular HSA trustee/custodian. Your
Employer has no authority or control over the funds deposited in your HSA.

The Plan Administrator will maintain records to keep track of HSA contributions that you make via
pre-tax Salary Reductions, but it will not create a separate fund or otherwise segregate assets for
this purpose.

HSA Q-3. What are the maximum HSA Benefits that | may elect under the Cafeteria Plan?

Page 21



Your annual contribution for HSA Benefits is equal to the annual benefit amount that you elect (for
example, if a $2,000 annual benefit amount is elected for 2010, then the annual contribution amount
is also $2,000). The amount you elect must not exceed the statutory maximum amount for HSA
contributions applicable to your High Deductible Health Plan coverage option (i.e., single or family)
for the calendar year in which the contribution is made. (Note: The statutory limits for 2016 are
$3,350 for single and $6,750 for family. The 2017 limit has increased to $3,400 for single, but it will
remain at $6,750 for family) An additional catch-up contribution of up to $1,000 may be made if you
are age 55 or older.

In addition, the maximum annual contribution shall be: (a) reduced by any matching (or other)
Employer contribution made on your behalf (there are currently no such Employer contributions
(other than pre-tax Salary Reductions) made under the Plan); and (b) pro-rated for the number of
months in which you are an HSA-Eligible Individual.

Note that if you are an HSA-Eligible Individual for only part of the year but you meet all of the
requirements under Code § 223 to be eligible to contribute to an HSA on December 1, you may be
able to contribute up to the full statutory maximum amount for HSA contributions applicable to your
coverage option (i.e., single or family). However, any contributions in excess of your annual
contribution under the Plan for HSA benefits (as described above), but not in excess of the
applicable full statutory maximum amount, must be made outside the Plan. In addition, if you do not
remain eligible to contribute to an HSA under the requirements of Code § 223 during the following
year, the portion of HSA contributions attributable to months that you were not actually eligible to
contribute to an HSA will be includible in your gross income and subject to a 10% penalty
(exceptions apply in the event of death or disability).

HSA Q-4. How are my HSA Benefits paid for under the Cafeteria Plan?

When you complete the Salary Reduction Agreement, you specify the amount of HSA Benefits that
you wish to pay for with your salary reduction. From then on, you make a contribution for such
coverage by having that portion deducted from each paycheck on a pre-tax basis (generally an
equal portion from each paycheck or an amount otherwise agreed to or as deemed appropriate by
the Plan Administrator).

For example, suppose that you have elected to contribute up to $2,000 per year for HSA Benefits
and that you have chosen no other benefits under the Cafeteria Plan. If you pay all of your
contributions, then our records would reflect that you have contributed a total of $2,000 during the
Plan Year. If you are paid biweekly, then our records would reflect that you have paid $76.92
($2,000 divided by 26) each pay period in contributions for the HSA Benefits that you have elected.
Such contributions will be forwarded to the HSA trustee/custodian (or its designee) within a
reasonable time after being withheld.

The Employer makes no contribution to your HSA and your Employer has no authority or control
over the funds deposited in your HSA.

HSA Q-5. Will | be taxed on the HSA Benefits that | receive?

You may save both federal income taxes and FICA taxes by participating in the Cafeteria Plan.
However, very different rules apply with respect to taxability of HSA Benefits than for other Benefits
offered under this Plan. For more information regarding the tax ramifications of participating in an
HSA as well as the terms and conditions of your HSA you may want to refer to the communications
materials provided by your HSA trustee/custodian as well as IRS Publication 969 ("Health Savings
Accounts and Other Tax-Favored Health Plans").

Page 22



The Employer cannot guarantee that specific tax consequences will flow from your participation in
the Cafeteria Plan. Ultimately, it is your responsibility to determine the tax treatment of HSA
Benefits. Remember that the Plan Administrator is not providing legal advice. !f you need an answer
upon which you can rely, you may wish to consult a tax advisor.

HSA Q-6. Who can contribute to an HSA under the Cafeteria Plan?

Only Employees who are HSA-Eligible Individuals can participate in the HSA Benefits. An
HSA-Eligible Individual means an individual who meets the eligibility requirements of Code § 223
and who has elected qualifying High Deductible Health Plan coverage offered by the Employer and
who has not elected any disqualifying non-High Deductible Health Plan coverage. The terms of the
High Deductible Health Plan that has been selected by your Employer will be further described in
materials that will be provided separately to you by the Employer.

HSA Q-7. Can | change my HSA Contribution under the Cafeteria Plan?

Unlike the other benefits offered under the Cafeteria Plan, you may increase, decrease, or revoke
your HSA contribution election at any time during the plan year for any reason by submitting an
election change form to the Plan Administrator (or to its designee). Your election change will be
prospectively effective on the first day of the month following the month in which you properly
submitted your election change. Your ability to make pre-tax contributions under this Plan to the
HSA identified above ends on the date that you cease to meet the eligibility requirements.

HSA Q-8. Where can | get more information on my HSA and its related tax consequences?
For details regarding your rights and responsibilities with respect to your HSA (including information
regarding the terms of eligibility, what constitutes a qualifying High Deductible Health Plan,
contributions to the HSA, and distributions from the HSA), please refer to your HSA trust or custodial
agreement and other documentation associated with your HSA and provided to you by your HSA
trustee/custodian. You may also want to review IRS Publication 969 ("Health Savings Accounts and
Other Tax-Favored Health Plans").

Page 23



THE THE CITY OF SANSOM PARK
CAFETERIA PLAN



ARTICLE I. Introductory Provisions
The City of Sansom Park (“the Employer") hereby establishes the The City of Sansom Park Cafeteria Plan (“the Plan”)
effective October 01 2016 (“the Effective Date”). Capitalized terms used in this Plan that are not otherwise defined shall

have the meanings set forth in Article |I.

This Plan is designed to allow an Eligible Employee to pay for his or her share of Contributions under one or more
Insurance Plans on a pre-tax Salary Reduction basis.

This Plan is intended to qualify as a “cafeteria plan” under Code § 125 and the regulations issued thereunder. The terms
of this document shall be interpreted to accomplish that objective.

Although reprinted within this document, the different components of this Plan shall be deemed separate plans for

purposes of administration and all reporting and nondiscrimination requirements imposed on such components by the
Code.

ARTICLE Il. Definitions

“Benefits” means the Premium Payment Benefits.

“Benefit Package Option” means a qualified benefit under Code § 125(f) that is offered under a cafeteria plan, or an
option for coverage under an underlying accident or health plan (such as an indemnity option, an HMO option, or a PPO
option under an accident or health plan).

“Change in Status” has the meaning described in Section 4.6.

“COBRA” means the Consolidated Omnibus Budget Reconciliation Act of 1985, as amended.

“Code” means the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended.

“Contributions” means the amount contributed to pay for the cost of Benefits (including self-funded Benefits as well as
those that are insured), as calculated under Section 6.2 for Premium Payment Benefits.

“Committee” means the Benefits Committee (or the equivalent thereof) of The City of Sansom Park

“Compensation” means the wages or salary paid to an Employee by the Employer, determined prior to (a) any Salary
Reduction election under this Plan; (b) any salary reduction election under any other cafeteria plan; and (c) any
compensation reduction under any Code § 132(f)(4) plan; but determined after (d) any salary deferral elections under
any Code § 401(k), 403(b), 408(k), or 457(b) plan or arrangement. Thus, “Compensation” generally means wages or
salary paid to an Employee by the Employer, as reported in Box 1 of Form W-2, but adding back any wages or salary
forgone by virtue of any election described in (a), (b), or (c) of the preceding sentence.

“Dental Insurance Benefits” means the Employee's Dental Insurance Plan coverage for purposes of this Plan.
“Dental Insurance Plan(s)” means the plan(s) that the Employer maintains for its Employees (and for their Spouses

and Dependents that may be eligible under the terms of such plan(s)) providing dental benefits through a group
insurance policy or policies. The Employer may substitute, add, subtract, or revise at any time the menu of such plans

Page 2



and/or the benefits, terms, and conditions of any such plans. Any such substitution, addition, subtraction, or revision will
be communicated to Participants and will automatically be incorporated by reference under this Plan.

“Dependent” means any individual who is a tax dependent of the Participant as defined in Code § 152, with the
following exceptions: (a) for purposes of accident or health coverage (to the extent funded under the Premium Payment
Component, and for purposes of the Health FSA Component), (1) a dependent is defined as in Code § 152, determined
without regard to subsections (b)(1), (b)(2), and (d)(1)(B) thereof; and (2) any child to whom IRS Rev. Proc. 2-008-48
applies. Furthermore, notwithstanding anything in the foregoing that may be to the contrary, a “Dependent” shall also
include for purposes of any accident or health coverage provided under this plan a child of a Participant who has not
attained age 27 by the end of any given taxable year.

“Earned Income” means all income derived from wages, salaries, tips, self-employment, and other Compensation
(such as disability or wage continuation benefits), but only if such amounts are includible in gross income for the taxable
year. Earned income does not include any other amounts excluded from earned income under Code § 32(c)(2), such as
amounts received under a pension or annuity or pursuant to workers’ compensation.

“Effective Date” of this Plan has the meaning described in Article 1.

“Election Form/Salary Reduction Agreement” means the form provided by the Administrator for the purpose of
allowing an Eligible Employee to participate in this Plan by electing Salary Reductions to pay for Premium Payment
Benefits. This form may be in either paper or electronic form at the Employer's discretion in accordance with the
procedures detailed in Article IV.

“Eligible Employee” means an Employee eligible to participate in this Plan, as provided in Section 3.1.

“Employee” means an individual that the Employer classifies as a common-law employee and who is on the
Employer's W-2 payroll, but does not include the following: (a) any leased employee (including but not limited to those
individuals defined as leased employees in Code § 414(n)) or an individual classified by the Employer as a contract
worker, independent contractor, temporary employee, or casual employee for the period during which such individual is
so classified, whether or not any such individual is on the Employer's W-2 payroll or is determined by the IRS or others
to be a common-law employee of the Employer; (b} any individual who performs services for the Employer but who is
paid by a temporary or other employment or staffing agency for the period during which such individual is paid by such
agency, whether or not such individual is determined by the IRS or others to be a common-law employee of the
Employer; (c) any employee covered under a collective bargaining agreement; (d) any self-employed individual; (e)
any partner in a partnership; (f) any more-than-2% shareholder in a Subchapter S corporation; or (g) a “seasonal
employee” The term “Employee” does include “former Employees” for the limited purpose of allowing continued
eligibility for benefits under the Plan for the remainder of the Plan Year in which an Employee ceases to be employed by
the Employer, but only to the extent specifically provided elsewhere under this Plan.

“Employer” means The City of Sansom Park, and any Related Employer that adopts this Plan with the approval of The
City of Sansom Park. Related Employers that have adopted this Plan, if any, are listed in Appendix A of this Plan.
However, for purposes of Articles XI and XIV and Section 15.3, “Employer” means only The City of Sansom Park.

“Employment Commencement Date” means the first regularly scheduled working day on which the Employee first
performs an hour of service for the Employer for Compensation.

“ERISA" means the Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974, as amended. The City of Sansom Park is not
subject to ERISA nor does The City of Sansom Park adopt ERISA. Any references to ERISA herein are for reference
purposes only

“FMLA” means the Family and Medical Leave Act of 1993, as amended.

“Health Insurance Benefits” means any insurance benefits providing medical or other health insurance coverage

Page 3



through a group insurance policy or policies.

“HIPAA” means the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996, as amended.

“HMO” means the health maintenance organization Benefit Package Option under the Medical Insurance Plan.
“Hospital Indemnity Benefits” means the Employee’s Hospital Indemnity Plan coverage for purposes of this Plan.

“Hospital Indemnity Plan(s)” means the plan(s) that the Employer maintains for its Employees (and for their Spouses
and Dependents that may be eligible under the terms of such plan(s)) providing certain indemnity benefits in the event of
hospitalization or other similar medical event through a group insurance policy or policies. The Employer may substitute,
add, subtract, or revise at any time the menu of such plans and/or the benefits, terms, and conditions of any such plans.
Any such substitution, addition, subtraction, or revision will be communicated to Participants and will automatically be
incorporated by reference under this Plan.

“HRA” means a health reimbursement arrangement as defined in IRS Notice 2002-45.

“Insurance Benefits” means benefits offered through the Insurance Plans.

“Insurance Plan(s)” means a plan or plans offering benefits through a group insurance policy or policies.
“Medical Insurance Benefits” means the Employee’s Medical Insurance Plan coverage for purposes of this Plan.

“Medical Insurance Plan(s)” means the plan(s) that the Employer maintains for its Employees (and for their Spouses
and Dependents that may be eligible under the terms of such plan), providing major medical type benefits through a
group insurance policy or policies (with HMO and PPO options). The Employer may substitute, add, subtract, or revise
at any time the menu of such plans and/or the benefits, terms, and conditions of any such plans. Any such substitution,
addition, subtraction, or revision will be communicated to Participants and will automatically be incorporated by
reference under this Plan.

“Open Enroliment Period” with respect to a Plan Year means any period before the beginning of the Plan Year that
may be prescribed by the Administrator as the period of time in which Employees who will be Eligible Employees at the
beginning of the Plan Year may elect benefits.

“Participant” means a person who is an Eligible Employee and who is participating in this Plan in accordance with the
provisions of Article 1. Participants include (a) those who elect one or more of the Medical Insurance Benefits and (b)
those who elect instead to receive their full salary in cash and to pay for their share of their Contributions under the
Medical Insurance Plan.

“Period of Coverage” means the Plan Year, with the following exceptions: (a) for Employees who first become eligible
to participate, it shall mean the portion of the Plan Year following the date on which participation commences, as
described in Section 3.1; and (b) for Employees who terminate participation, it shall mean the portion of the Plan Year
prior to the date on which participation terminates, as described in Section 3.2.

“Plan” means the The City of Sansom Park Cafeteria Plan as set forth herein and as amended from time to time.
“Plan Administrator” means the The City of Sansom Park Human Resources Manager or the equivalent thereof for
The City of Sansom Park, who has the full authority to act on behalf of the Plan Administrator, except with respect to
appeals, for which the Committee has the full authority to act on behalf of the Plan Administrator, as described in

Section 13.1.

“Plan Year” means the 12-month period commencing October 01 2016 and ending on September 30 2017, except in
the case of a short plan year representing the initial Plan Year or where the Plan Year is being changed, in which case

Page 4



the Plan Year shall be the entire short plan year.
“PPO” means the preferred provider organization Benefit Package Option under the Medical Insurance Plan.

“Premium Payment Benefits” means the Premium Payment Benefits that are paid for on a pre-tax Salary Reduction
basis as described in Section 6.1.

“Premium Payment Component” means the Component of this Plan described in Article V1.
“QMCSO” means a qualified medical child support order, as defined in ERISA § 609(a).

“Related Employer” means any employer affiliated with The City of Sansom Park that, under Code § 414(b), § 414(c),
or § 414(m), is treated as a single employer with The City of Sansom Park for purposes of Code § 125(g)(4).

“Salary Reduction” means the amount by which the Participant's Compensation is reduced and applied by the
Employer under this Plan to pay for one or more of the Benefits, as permitted for the applicable Component, before any
applicable state and/or federal taxes have been deducted from the Participant's Compensation (i.e., on a pre-tax basis).

“Spouse” means an individual who is treated as a spouse for federal tax purposes.
“Vision Insurance Benefits” means the Employee’s Vision Insurance Plan coverage for purposes of this Plan.

“Vision Insurance Plan(s)” means the plan(s) that the Employer maintains for its Employees (and for their Spouses
and Dependents that may be eligible under the terms of such plan(s)) providing vision benefits through a group
insurance policy or policies. The Employer may substitute, add, subtract, or revise at any time the menu of such plans
and/or the benefits, terms, and conditions of any such plans. Any such substitution, addition, subtraction, or revision will
be communicated to Participants and will automatically be incorporated by reference under this Plan.

ARTICLE III. Eligibility and Participation
3.1 Eligibility to Participate

An individual is eligible to participate in this Plan if the individual: (a) is an Employee; (b) is working 30 hours or more
per week; and (c) has been employed by the Employer for a consecutive period of 60 days, counting his or her
Employment Commencement Date as the first such day. Eligibility for Premium Payment Benefits may also be subject to
the additional requirements, if any, specified in the Medical Insurance Plan. Once an Employee has met the Plan's
eligibility requirements, the Employee may elect coverage effective the first day of the next calendar month, in
accordance with the procedures described in Article {V.

3.2 Termination of Participation

A Participant will cease to be a Participant in this Plan upon the earlier of:

+ the termination of this Plan; or

+ the date on which the Employee ceases (because of retirement, termination of employment, layoff, reduction of hours,
or any other reason) to be an Eligible Employee. Notwithstanding the foregoing, for purposes of pre-taxing COBRA
coverage certain Employees may continue eligibility for certain periods on the terms and subject to the restrictions
described in Section 6.4 for Insurance Benefits.

Termination of participation in this Plan will automatically revoke the Participant's elections. The Medical Insurance

Benefits will terminate as of the date specified in the Medical Insurance Plan.

Page 5



3.3 Participation Following Termination of Employment or Loss of Eligibility

If a Participant terminates his or her employment for any reason, including (but not limited to) disability, retirement,
layoff, or voluntary resignation, and then is rehired within 30 days or less after the date of a termination of employment,
then the Employee will be reinstated with the same elections that such individual had before termination. If a former
Participant is rehired more than 30 days following termination of employment and is otherwise eligible to participate in
the Plan, then the individual may make new elections as a new hire as described in Section 3.1. Notwithstanding the
above, an election to participate in the Premium Payment Component will be reinstated only to the extent that coverage
under the Medical Insurance Plan (here, major medical insurance) is reinstated. If an Employee (whether or not a
Participant) ceases to be an Eligible Employee for any reason (other than for termination of employment), including (but
not limited to) a reduction of hours, and then becomes an Eligible Employee again, the Employee must complete the
waiting period described in Section 3.1 before again becoming eligible to participate in the Plan.

3.4 FMLA Leaves of Absence

(a) Health Benefits. Notwithstanding any provision to the contrary in this Plan, if a Participant goes on a qualifying leave
under the FMLA, then to the extent required by the FMLA, the Employer will continue to maintain the Participant's Health
Insurance Benefits on the same terms and conditions as if the Participant were still an active Employee. That is, if the
Participant elects to continue his or her coverage while on leave, the Employer will continue to pay its share of the
Contributions.

An Employer may require participants to continue all Health Insurance Benefits coverage for Participants while they are
on paid leave (provided that Participants on non-FMLA paid leave are required to continue coverage). If so, the
Participant's share of the Contributions shall be paid by the method normally used during any paid leave (for instance,
on a pre-tax Salary Reduction basis).

In the event of unpaid FMLA leave (or paid FMLA leave where coverage is not required to be continued), a Participant
may elect to continue his or her Health Insurance Benefits during the leave. If the Participant elects to continue coverage
while on FMLA leave, then the Participant may pay his or her share of the Contributions in one of the following ways:

« with after-tax dollars, by sending monthly payments to the Employer by the due date established by the Employer,;

» with pre-tax dollars, by having such amounts withheld from the Participant's ongoing Compensation (if any), including
unused sick days and vacation days, or pre-paying all or a portion of the Contributions for the expected duration of the
leave on a pre-tax Salary Reduction basis out of pre-leave Compensation. To pre-pay the Contributions, the Participant
must make a special election to that effect prior to the date that such Compensation would normally be made available
(pre-tax dollars may not be used to fund coverage during the next Plan Year); or

* under another arrangement agreed upon between the Participant and the Plan Administrator (e.g., the Plan
Administrator may fund coverage during the leave and withhold “catch-up” amounts from the Participant's Compensation
on a pre-tax or after-tax basis) upon the Participant's return.

If the Emplayer requires all Participants to continue Health Insurance Benefits during an unpaid FMLA leave, then the
Participant may elect to discontinue payment of the Participant's required Contributions until the Participant returns from
leave. Upon returning from leave, the Participant will be required to repay the Contributions not paid by the Participant
during the leave. Payment shall be withheld from the Participant's Compensation either on a pre-tax or after-tax basis,
as agreed to by the Plan Administrator and the Participant.

If a Participant’s Health Insurance Benefits coverage ceases while on FMLA leave (e.g., for non-payment of required
contributions), then the Participant is permitted to re-enter the Medical Insurance Benefits upon return from such leave
on the same basis as when the Participant was participating in the Plan prior to the leave, or as otherwise required by
the FMLA. In addition, the Plan may require Participants whose Health Insurance Benefits coverage terminated during
the leave to be reinstated in such coverage upon return from a period of unpaid leave, provided that Participants who

Page 6



return from a period of unpaid, non-FMLA leave are required to be reinstated in such coverage.

(b) Non-Health Benefits. If a Participant goes on a qualifying leave under the FMLA, then entitlement to non-health
benefits is to be determined by the Employer's policy for providing such Benefits when the Participant is on non-FMLA
leave, as described in Section 3.5. If such policy permits a Participant to discontinue contributions while on leave, then
the Participant will, upon returning from leave, be required to repay the Contributions not paid by the Participant during
the leave. Payment shall be withheld from the Participant's Compensation either on a pre-tax or after-tax basis, as may
be agreed upon by the Plan Administrator and the Participant or as the Plan Administrator otherwise deems appropriate.

3.5 Non-FMLA Leaves of Absence If a Participant goes on an unpaid leave of absence that does not affect eligibility,
then the Participant will continue to participate and the Contributions due for the Participant will be paid by pre-payment
before going on leave, by after-tax contributions while on leave, or with catch-up contributions after the leave ends, as
may be determined by the Plan Administrator. If a Participant goes on an unpaid leave that affects eligibility, then the
election change rules detailed in Article IV will apply.

ARTICLE IV. Method and Timing of Elections; Irrevocability of Elections

4.1 Elections When First Eligible

An Employee who first becomes eligible to participate in the Plan mid-year may elect to commence participation in one
or more Benefits on the first day of the month after the eligibility requirements have been satisfied, provided that an
Election Form/Salary Reduction Agreement is submitted to the Plan Administrator before the first day of the month in
which participation will commence. An Employee who does not elect benefits when first eligible may not enroll until the
next Open Enrollment Period, unless an event occurs that would justify a mid-year election change, as described in
Article IV,

The Employer reserves the right, within its discretion, to allow or require any or all of the election procedures detailed in
this Article 4.1 to be performed electronically.

Benefits shall be subject to the additional requirements, if any, specified in the Medical insurance Plan. The provisions of
this Plan are not intended to override any exclusions, eligibility requirements, or waiting periods specified in any
Insurance Plans.

4.2 Elections During Open Enrollment Period

During each Open Enrollment Period with respect to a Plan Year, the Plan Administrator shall provide an Election
Form/Salary Reduction Agreement to each Employee who is eligible to participate in this Plan. The Election Form/Salary
Reduction Agreement shall enable the Employee to elect to participate in the various Components of this Plan for the
next Plan Year and to authorize the necessary Salary Reductions to pay for the Benefits elected. The Election
Form/Salary Reduction Agreement must be returned to the Plan Administrator on or before the last day of the Open
Enrollment Period, and it shall become effective on the first day of the next Plan Year. If an Eligible Employee fails to
return the Election Form/Salary Reduction Agreement during the Open Enroliment Period, then the Employee may not
elect any Benefits under this Plan until the next Open Enrollment Period, unless an event occurs that would justify a
mid-year election change, as described in Article IV.

The Employer reserves the right, within its discretion, to allow or require any or all of the election procedures detailed in
this Article 4.2 to be performed electronically.

Page 7



4.3 Failure of Eligible Employee to File an Election Form/Salary Reduction Agreement

If an Eligible Employee fails to file an Election Form/Salary Reduction Agreement within the time period described in
Sections 4.1 and 4.2, then the Employee may not elect any Benefits under the Plan (a) until the next Open Enroliment
Period; or (b) until an event occurs that would justify a mid-year election change, as described in Article V. If an
Employee who fails to file an Election Form/Salary Reduction Agreement is eligible for Medical Insurance Benefits and
has made an effective election for such Benefits, then the Employee’s share of the Contributions for such Benefits will
be paid with after-tax dollars outside of this Plan until such time as the Employee files, during a subsequent Open
Enrollment Period (or after an event occurs that would justify a mid-year election change as described in Article V), a
timely Election Form/Salary Reduction Agreement to elect Premium Payment Benefits. Until the Employee files such an
election, the Employer’s portion of the Contribution will also be paid outside of this Plan.

4.4 Irrevocability of Elections

Unless an exception applies (as described in this Article V), a Participant’s election under the Plan is irrevocable for the
duration of the Period of Coverage to which it relates.

Unless otherwise noted in this section, a Participant’s election under the Plan is irrevocable for the duration of the Period
of Coverage to which it relates. In other words, unless an exception applies, the Participant may not change any
elections for the duration of the Period of Coverage regarding:

* Participation in this Plan;
» Salary Reduction amounts; or
* election of particular Benefit Package Options.

4.5 Procedure for Making New Election If Exception to Irrevocability Applies

(a) Timeframe for Making New Election. A Participant (or an Eligible Employee who, when first eligible under Section 3.1
or during the Open Enrollment Period, declined to be a Participant) may make a new election within 30 days of the
occurrence of an event described in Section 4.6 or 4.7, as applicable, but only if the election under the new Election
Form/Salary Reduction Agreement is made on account of and is consistent with the event and if the election is made
within any specified time period (e.g., for Sections 4.7(d) through 4.7(j), within 30 days after the events described in such
Sections unless otherwise required by law). Notwithstanding the foregoing, a Change in Status (e.g., a divorce or a
dependent's losing dependent status) that results in a beneficiary becoming ineligible for coverage under the Medical
Insurance Plan shall automatically result in a corresponding election change, whether or not requested by the
Participant within the normal 30-day period.

(b) Effective Date of New Election. Elections made pursuant to this Section 4.5 shall be effective for the balance of the
Period of Coverage following the change of election unless a subsequent event allows for a further election change.
Except as provided in Section 4.7(e) for HIPAA special enroliment rights in the event of birth, adoption, or placement for
adoption, all election changes shall be effective on a prospective basis only (i.e., election changes will become effective
no earlier than the first day of the next calendar month following the date that the election change was filed, but, as
determined by the Plan Administrator, election changes may become effective later to the extent that the coverage in the
applicable Benefit Package Option commences later).

4.6 Change in Status Defined

Participant may make a new election upon the occurrence of certain events as described in Section 4.7, including a
Change in Status, for the applicable Component. “Change in Status” means any of the events described below, as well
as any other events included under subsequent changes to Code § 125 or regulations issued thereunder, which the
Plan Administrator, in its sole discretion and on a uniform and consistent basis, determines are permitted under IRS
regulations and under this Plan:

Page 8



(a) Legal Manital Status. A change in a Participant's legal marital status, including marriage, death of a Spouse, divorce,
legal separation, or annulment;

(b) Number of Dependents. Events that change a Participant's number of Dependents, including birth, death, adoption,
and placement for adoption;

(c) Employment Status. Any of the following events that change the employment status of the Participant or his or her
Spouse or Dependents: (1) a termination or commencement of employment; (2) a strike or lockout; (3) a
commencement of or return from an unpaid leave of absence; (4) a change in worksite; and (5) if the eligibility conditions
of this Plan or other employee benefits plan of the Participant or his or her Spouse or Dependents depend on the
employment status of that individual and there is a change in that individual's status with the consequence that the
individual becomes (or ceases to be) eligible under this Plan or other employee benefits plan, such as if a plan only
applies to salaried employees and an employee switches from salaried to hourly-paid, union to non-union, or full-time to
part-time (or vice versa), with the consequence that the employee ceases to be eligible for the Plan;

(d) Dependent Eligibility Requirements. An event that causes a Dependent to satisfy or cease to satisfy the Dependent
eligibility requirements for a particular benefit, such as attaining a specified age, or any similar circumstance; and

(e) Change in Residence. A change in the place of residence of the Participant or his or her Spouse or Dependents.
4.7 Events Permitting Exception to Irrevocability Rule

A Participant may change an election as described below upon the occurrence of the stated events for the applicable
Component of this Plan:

(a) Open Enroliment Period. A Participant may change an election during the Open Enroliment Period.

(b) Termination of Employment. A Participant’s election will terminate under the Plan upon termination of employment in
accordance with Sections 3.2 and 3.3, as applicable.

(c) Leaves of Absence. A Participant may change an election under the Plan upon FMLA leave in accordance with
Section 3.4 and upon non-FMLA leave in accordance with Section 3.5.

(d) Change in Status. A Participant may change his or her actual or deemed election under the Plan upon the
occurrence of a Change in Status (as defined in Section 4.6), but only if such election change is made on account of and
corresponds with a Change in Status that affects eligibility for coverage under a plan of the Employer or a plan of the
Spouse’s or Dependent’'s employer (referred to as the general consistency requirement). A Change in Status that affects
eligibility for coverage under a plan of the Employer or a plan of the Spouse’s or Dependent's employer includes a
Change in Status that results in an increase or decrease in the number of an Employee's family members (i.e., a
Spouse and/or Dependents) who may benefit from the coverage.

(1) Loss of Spouse or Dependent Eligibility; Special COBRA Rules. For a Change in Status involving a Participant's
divorce, annulment or legal separation from a Spouse, the death of a Spouse or a Dependent, or a Dependent's ceasing
to satisfy the eligibility requirements for coverage, a Participant may only elect to cance! accident or health insurance
coverage for (a) the Spouse involved in the divorce, annulment, or legal separation; (b) the deceased Spouse or
Dependent; or (c) the Dependent that ceased to satisfy the eligibility requirements. Canceling coverage for any other
individual under these circumstances would fail to correspond with that Change in Status. Notwithstanding the foregoing,
if the Participant or his or her Spouse or Dependent becomes eligible for COBRA (or similar health plan continuation
coverage under state law) under the Employer’s plan (and the Participant remains a Participant under this Plan in
accordance with Section 3.2), then the Participant may increase his or her election to pay for such coverage (this rule
does not apply to a Participant's Spouse who becomes eligible for COBRA or similar coverage as a result of divorce,
annulment, or legal separation).

Page 9



(2) Gain of Coverage Eligibility Under Another Employer’s Plan. For a Change in Status in which a Participant or his or
her Spouse or Dependent gains eligibility for coverage under a cafeteria plan or qualified benefit plan of the employer of
the Participant's Spouse or Dependent as a result of a change in marital status or a change in employment status, a
Participant may elect to cease or decrease coverage for that individual only if coverage for that individual becomes
effective or is increased under the Spouse's or Dependent's employer's plan. The Plan Administrator may rely on a
Participant's certification that the Participant has obtained or will obtain coverage under the Spouse’s or Dependent’s
employer’s plan, unless the Plan Administrator has reason to believe that the Participant's certification is incorrect.

(e) HIPAA Special Enroliment Rights. If a Participant or his or her Spouse or Dependent is entitled to special enrollment
rights under a group health plan (other than an excepted benefit), as required by HIPAA under Code § 9801(f), then a
Participant may revoke a prior election for group health plan coverage and make a new election (including, when
required by HIPAA, an election to enroll in another benefit package under a group health plan), provided that the
election change corresponds with such HIPAA special enroliment right. As required by HIPAA, a special enroliment right
will arise in the following circumstances:

» a Participant or his or her Spouse or Dependent declined to enroll in group health plan coverage because he or she
had coverage, and eligibility for such coverage is subsequently lost because: (1) the coverage was provided under
COBRA and the COBRA coverage was exhausted; or (2) the coverage was non-COBRA coverage and the coverage
terminated due to loss of eligibility for coverage or the employer contributions for the coverage were terminated; or

+ a new Dependent is acquired as a result of marriage, birth, adoption, or placement for adoption.

An election to add previously eligible Dependents as a result of the acquisition of a new Spouse or Dependent child shall
be considered to be consistent with the special enrollment right. An election change on account of a HIPAA special
enrollment attributable to the birth, adoption, or placement for adoption of a new Dependent child may, subject to the
provisions of the underlying group health plan, be effective retroactively (up to 30 days).

For purposes of this Section 4.7(e), the term “loss of eligibility” includes (but is not limited to) loss of eligibility due to
legal separation, divorce, cessation of dependent status, death of an employee, termination of employment, reduction of
hours, or any loss of eligibility for coverage that is measured with reference to any of the foregoing; loss of coverage
offered through an HMO that does not provide benefits to individuals who do not reside, live, or work in the service area
because an individual no longer resides, lives, or works in the service area (whether or not within the choice of the
individual), and in the case of HMO coverage in the group market, no other benefit package is available to the individual;
a situation in which an individual incurs a claim that would meet or exceed a lifetime limit on all benefits; and a situation
in which a plan no longer offers any benefits to the class of similarly situated individuals that includes the individual.

() Certain Judgments, Decrees and Orders. If a judgment, decree, or order (collectively, an “Order”) resulting from a
divorce, legal separation, annulment, or change in legal custody (including a QMCSQ) requires accident or health
coverage (including an election for Health FSA Benefits) for a Participant's child (including a foster child who is a
Dependent of the Participant), then a Participant may (1) change his or her election to provide coverage for the child
(provided that the Order requires the Participant to provide coverage); or (2) change his or her election to revoke
coverage for the child if the Order requires that another individual (including the Participant's Spouse or former Spouse)
provide coverage under that individual's plan and such coverage is actually provided.

(9) Medicare and Medicaid. |f a Participant or his or her Spouse or Dependent who is enrolled in a health or accident
plan under this Plan becomes entitled to (i.e., becomes enrolled in) Medicare or Medicaid (other than coverage
consisting solely of benefits under Section 1928 of the Social Security Act providing for pediatric vaccines), then the
Participant may prospectively reduce or cancel the health or accident coverage of the person becoming entitled to
Medicare or Medicaid. Furthermore, if a Participant or his or her Spouse or Dependent who has been entitled to
Medicare or Medicaid loses eligibility for such coverage, then the Participant may prospectively elect to commence or
increase the accident or health coverage of the individual who loses Medicare or Medicaid eligibility.

Page 10



(h) Change in Cost. For purposes of this Section 4.7(h), “similar coverage” means coverage for the same category of
benefits for the same individuals (e.g., family to family or single to single). For example, two plans that provide major
medical coverage are considered to be similar coverage.

(1) Increase or Decrease for Insignificant Cost Changes. Participants are required to increase their elective contributions
(by increasing Salary Reductions) to reflect insignificant increases in their required contribution for their Benefit Package
Option(s), and to decrease their elective contributions to reflect insignificant decreases in their required contribution.The
Plan Administrator, in its sole discretion and on a uniform and consistent basis, will determine whether an increase or
decrease is insignificant based upon all the surrounding facts and circumstances, including but not fimited to the dollar
amount or percentage of the cost change. The Plan Administrator, on a reasonable and consistent basis, will
automatically effectuate this increase or decrease in affected employees’ elective contributions on a prospective basis.

(2) Significant Cost Increases. If the Plan Administrator determines that the cost charged to an Employee of a
Participant's Benefit Package Option(s) significantly increases during a Period of Coverage, then the Participant may (a)
make a corresponding prospective increase in his or her elective contributions (by increasing Salary Reductions); (b)
revoke his or her election for that coverage, and in lieu thereof, receive on a prospective basis coverage under another
Benefit Package Option that provides similar coverage; or (c) drop coverage prospectively if there is no other Benefit
Package Option available that provides similar coverage. The Plan Administrator, in its sole discretion and on a uniform
and consistent basis, will decide whether a cost increase is significant in accordance with prevailing IRS guidance.

(3) Significant Cost Decreases. If the Plan Administrator determines that the cost of any Benefit Package Option
significantly decreases during a Period of Coverage, then the Plan Administrator may permit the following election
changes: (a) Participants enrolled in that Benefit Package Option may make a corresponding prospective decrease in
their elective contributions (by decreasing Salary Reductions); (b) Participants who are enrolled in another Benefit
Package Option may change their election on a prospective basis to elect the Benefit Package Option that has
decreased in cost Medical Insurance Plan); or (c) Employees who are otherwise eligible under Section 3.1 may elect the
Benefit Package Option that has decreased in cost on a prospective basis, subject to the terms and limitations of the
Benefit Package Option. The Plan Administrator, in its sole discretion and on a uniform and consistent basis, will decide
whether a cost decrease is significant in accordance with prevailing IRS guidance.

(i) Change in Coverage. The definition of “similar coverage” under Section 12.4(h) applies also to this Section 12.4(i).

(1) Significant Curtailment. If coverage is “significantly curtailed” (as defined below), Participants may elect coverage
under another Benefit Package Option that provides similar coverage. in addition, as set forth below, if the coverage
curtailment results in a “Loss of Coverage” (as defined below), then Participants may drop coverage if no similar
coverage is offered by the Employer. The Plan Administrator in its sole discretion, on a uniform and consistent basis, will
decide, in accordance with prevailing IRS guidance, whether a curtailment is “significant,” and whether a Loss of
Coverage has occurred.

(a) Significant Curtailment Without Loss of Coverage. If the Plan Administrator determines that a Participant's coverage
under a Benefit Package Option under this Plan (or the Participant's Spouse’s or Dependent’s coverage under his or her
employer’s plan) is significantly curtailed without a Loss of Coverage (for example, when there is a significant increase in
the deductible, the co-pay, or the out-of-pocket cost-sharing limit under an accident or health plan during a Period of
Coverage, the Participant may revoke his or her election for the affected coverage, and in lieu thereof, prospectively
elect coverage under another Benefit Package Option that provides similar coverage. Coverage under a plan is deemed
to be "significantly curtailed” only if there is an overall reduction in coverage provided under the plan so as to constitute
reduced coverage generally.

(b) Significant Curtailment With a Loss of Coverage. If the Plan Administrator determines that a Participant's Benefit
Package Option coverage under this Plan (or the Participant's Spouse’s or Dependent's coverage under his or her
employer's plan) is significantly curtailed, and if such curtailment results in a Loss of Coverage during a Period of
Coverage, then the Participant may revoke his or her election for the affected coverage and may either prospectively
elect coverage under another Benefit Package Option that provides similar coverage or drop coverage if no other

Page 11






